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tg3 North Main Street.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager
City of Somersworth
Somersworth, New Hampshire

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major governmental and

proprietary fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Somersworth, as of and for the year ended June 30,

zoiz, ani the related notei toitre financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Somerswofih's basic financial

statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of

the governmental activities, busiriess-type activities, eaih major governmental and proprietary fund, and the aggregate remaining

funJinformation of the Ciiy of Someiiworth, as of June 30, 2023,andthe respective changes in financial position and where

applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the major general fund for the year then ended in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and

the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolle_r General of

the United States. our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit

of the Financial Statementi section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City of Somerswofth and. to meet our

other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevanfethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter - Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2-C to the financial statements, in the year ending June 30, 2023, the City adopted new accounting

guidance, GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technolog,t Arrangemenfs' Our opinion is not modified

with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financiul Statements

The City of Somersworth's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,

and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in

the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Somersworth's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve

mont[s beyond the financial statement date, including any curently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly

thereafter.



City of Somersworth
I ndep ende nt A uditor's Rep o rt

Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatiment, whether due to fraud or effor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is

a high level ofassurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with

GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, orthe override of internal control. Misstatements are consideredmaterial if there is a substantial likelihood

that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial

statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,

evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Somersworth's

internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

r Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates

made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,that raise substantial

doubt about the City of Somersworth's ability to continue as a going concem for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required S upplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the following be presented to supplement

the basic financial statements:

o Management's Discussion and Analysis,
. Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability,
r Schedule of City Conhibutions - Pensions,
r Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability,
r Schedule of City Contributions - Other Postemployment Benefits,
r Schedule of Changes in the City's Total Other Postemployment Benefits Liability and Related Ratios, and

o Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic

financial statements in anippropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to

the required supplementary iniormation in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Ameriia, which ionsisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the

information for consistency with management's risponses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge

we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the

information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any

assurance.

S up p I e me nt ary I nfo rmat i o n

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of
Somersworth's basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures of
FederalAwards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Part 200, UntformAdministrative Requirements, Cost
principles, and Audit 

'Requirements 
for Federal Awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required

part of the basic financial statements.
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City of Somersworth
Independent Auditor's Report

The combining and individual fund schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of

management u-nd *.r, derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic

financial statements. Such information has been subjlcted to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial

statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying

accounting and other records ur"d to prepare the basiJfinan"iul stat"ments or to the basic financial statements themselves' and

other additional procedures in accordanc-e with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our

opinion, the combining and individual fund schedules ind the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated' in

ail mate.ial respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Stundards

In accordanc e with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 1,2024 on our consideration of

the City of Somersworth's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of

laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose ofthat report is solely to describe the scoPe of

our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to Provide an

opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral Part of an

audit performed in accordance with Government

over financial reporting and compliance.
Auditing Stqndards in considering the City of S control

April1,2024
Concord, New Hampshire

PLODZIK & SANDERSON
Professional Association

J



MANAGEM s Dtsctjs SI ON AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Somersworth, we offer readers this narrative overview and

analysis of ttr" financial activities of the City of Somersworth for the fiscal year ended June 30,

202g. We encourage readers to consider the information here in conjunction with additional

information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal.

A. OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial

statements, The basic financial statements are comprised of four components: (1)

government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, (3) notes to financial

statements, and (4) the required supplementary information. This report also contains other

supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are

designed to provide readers with a broad overview of our finances in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all assets, deferred outflows of

resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the balance reported as net

position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator

of whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position

changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as

soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of

related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some

items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and

earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally

supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other

functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user

fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities include general

government, public safety, highways and streets, health and welfare, culture and recreation,

and education. The business-type activities include water, sewer, and solid waste activities.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to

maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or

objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-

related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three categories:

governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

4



Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same

@overnmentalactivitiesinthegoVernment-widefinancialstatements'
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial

statements focus on near{erm inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on

balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information

may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide

financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental

funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide

financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of
the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the Governmental Fund Balance

Sfreet and the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental

funds and governmental activities.

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for the general fund. A budgetary comparison

statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this

budget.

Proprietarv Funds. Proprietary funds are maintained as follows:

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities

in the government-wide financial statements. Specifically, enterprise funds are used to

account for water, sewer, and solid waste operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the business-type activities

reported in the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary

fund financial statements provide separate information for the water, sewer, and solid waste

operations, only the water and sewer are major funds.

Fiduciarv Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parttes orrtside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide

financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the

City's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprietary funds.

Notes to Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential

to a iull understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial

statements.

Other lnformation. ln addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,

@entscertainrequiredsupplementaryinformation,whichisrequiredtobe
disclosed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board'

B. FINAN CIAL HLIGHTS

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the total assets and deferred outflows of resources

exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $37,382,157, presented as "net

5



position" shown on the Statement of Net Position for the Total Primary Government' The

bity'r Net Position increased by $5,854,172 compared to the prior year's Net Position of

$31,527,987 as restated due to GASB Statement No. 87.

. As of the close of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported combined

ending fund balances of $14,149,309, a change of ($t ,778,982) in comparison with

the prior year.

. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund

was $9,574,005, a change of $1,873,531 in comparison with the prior year. Due to

City Council action, $1,600,000 of the General Fund's fund balance has been

designated for future years' expenditures.

. Total bonds payable and longterm debt at the close of the current fiscal year was

$37,773,313, a change of ($3,923,256) in comparison to the prior year.

c. GOVFRNM ENT .WIDE F INAN(}IAI ANALYSIS

The following is a summary of condensed government-wide financial data for the current

and prior fiscal years.

@VERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

2023

$ 29,436,699

64,910,694

$ 31,9s5,140

60.009,880

$ (2,s18,441)

%oChange
-7.8804

8.1'.7%

2022

Current assets

Noncurrent assets

Total assets

Defened outflows of res ources

Cunent liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows o f resources

Net investnrent in capital assets

Restricted net pos ition
Unres tricted net position

Total net position

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted net position

Total net position

9,199,805 8,591,628

91,965,020 2,382,373

608.177

25904

7.08%

3,555,s87

69,937,373

3,602,976

63,784,222

(47,389)

6,1 s3"15 l
-1,32%

9.65%

9.06%73,492,960 67 .198 6,105,762

14,961.099 23,004,sr!L (8,043,415) 4496oto

41,193,374 38,856,467

2,36r,098 5,640,445

(28.461.333) (34,33 1,978)

$ 10,164,934

2,336,907 6.01%

(3,279,347) -58.14o/o

5.870,64s -17.10%

48.4&%$ 139 $

2023
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Total assets

$ 13,041,672

42.548,368

Deferred outflows of resources 261,633

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTMTIES

2022 Chanqe % Change

$ (804,191) -5.81o/o$ 13,845,863
30.102.204 (595,508) -1.98o/o

43,948,067

55,565

(1,399,699) -3.18o/o

206,068 370.86%

543,597
19,892,540
20.436.137

Deferred inflows of resources 84,846 319.182 (234,336) -73.42o/o

842,683
21,478,716

(2ee,086)
(1,586,1 76)

-35.49o/o

-7.38o/o

22,321 .399 (1,885,262) -8.45%

10,792,002
11 ,497,016

$ 22,289,018

6

9,777,241
1 1 ,585,810

$ 21,363,051

1,014,761 10.380/o

(88,794) -0.77o/o

$ 925.967 4.33o/o



RNMENTAL S

2023 2022 Chanqe % Change

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Sanitation
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Conservation
Economic development
Education
Food service
lnterest on long{erm debt

Total expenditures
Program revenues:

Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes and other taxes
Licenses and permits

Grants and contributions not related

to a specific program

Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Unrealized loss on investments

Totalrevenues

Beginning net position, as restated
Ending net position

Change in net position

Expenses:
Water
Sewer
Solid waste

Total expenditures
Program revenues:

Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total revenues

Beginning net position

Ending net position

Change in net position

$2,656,1 19

6,600,552
3,694,476

163,673
319,700
556,027

1,492
846

31,130,532
930,632
888,408

46,942,457

$ 1,440,543
7,481,107
3,414,111

76,212
228,909
544,866

2,686
28,878,656

813,278
711 063

43,591,431

$ 1 ,215,576
(880,555)
280,365

87,461
90,791
11,161
1,492

(1,840)

2,251,876
117,354

84.38o/o

-11.77%
8.21o/o

114.760/o

39.66%
2.05o/o

100.00%
-68.50%

7.80o/o

14.43%
24.94o/o177 345

3,351,026 7.690/o

1,224,996
14,485,403
1,567,065

29,042,183
2,495,500

1,048,123
907,785

1,099,607

51,870,662

991,890
14,872,012

1,252,371

27,960,432
2,502,543

872,131
77,584

798,125

233,106
(386,609)
314,694

1,081,751
(7,043)

23.50o/o

-2.600/o

25.13o/o

3.87o/o

-0.28o/o

20.18o/o

1070.07o/o

37.77o/o

100.00%

175,992
830,201
301,482
72,451(72,451)

49,254,637

10,164,934 4,501,728
15,093,139 10,164,934

$4,928,205 $ 5,663,206

BUS INESS-TYPE ACTMTIES

2022

$2,543,574 5.160/0

2023 Chanqe % Change

$2,371,629 $2,077,155
2,502,778 2,706,776

$ 294,474
(203,998)

33,852

14.180/o

-7.54o/o

5.78o/o619 518 585,666

5,493,925 5,369,597 124,328 2.32%

6,379,929
22,888

6,954,793

17 075 21 344 4,269)

6,419,892 6,976,137 $ (556,245)

21,363,051 19,756,511
21,363,05122, 289,018

925.967

(574,864)
22,888

-8.27%
-100.00%
-20.00%

$

7

$ 1,606,540

-7.97%



As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's

financial position. At the close of the most recent fiscal year, total net position was

$37,382,157, a change of $5,854,172 from the prior year.

The largest portion of the City's net position, $51,985,376 reflects our investment in capital

assets i" g , land, buildings, machinery and equipment), less any related debt used to

acquire those assets that is still outstanding. These capital assets are used to provide

services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

Although the investment in capital assets is reported net of accumulated depreciation, it

should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other

sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of net position, $2,361,098 represents resources that are subject to

external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of ($16,964,317)

represents a deficit in unrestricted net position. This deficit is due to the reporting of GASB

68 and GASB 75 whereby the City must report our proportionate share of the net pension

liability for the New Hampshire Retirement System.

The City of Somersworth implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. As a result of the

implementation, the City of Somersworth restated the fiscal 2022 beginning net position of

the governmental activities and fund balance of the general fund. The following are the

details of the restatement:

Government-Wide
Statements

General
Fund

School
Grants Fund

To restate for initial measurement of lessor
lease receivables applicable to GASB #87

Miscellaneous rounding difference
Fund balance/net position, as previously reported

Fund balance/net position, as restated

553,716 $ 553,716 $

(2)

9,611,220 9,039,766

$
(2)

37,939

$ 10.164.934 $9,593,482 $ 37,937

Governmental activities. Governmental activities for the year resulted in a change in net

position of $4,928,205. Key elements of this change are as follows:

Governmental
Activities

General fund operating results, as disclosed in Exhibit C-3
School grants operating results
City capital projects operating results
Non-major funds operating results
Other GAAP acccruals, see Exhibit C-4 in the financial statements

Total

$ 1,477,068
(6,708)

(3,794,723)
545,381

6,707,187

8
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Business-Tvpe Activities. Business{ype activities for the year resulted in a change in net

position of $925,967. Key elements of this change are as follows:

Business-tYPe
Activities

$ 366,786
563,729

(4,548)

$ 925,967

D. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance with

finance-related legal requ irements.

Governmental funds. The focus of governmental funds is to provide information on near-

term inffows, outflo*s and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in

assessing financing requirements. ln particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a

useful measure of-a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the

fiscalyear.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported combined ending fund

balances of $14,149,309, a change of ($t ,778,982) in comparison with the prior year. Key

elements of this change are as follows:

Governmental
Funds

Water Fund
Sewer Fund
Solid Waste Fund

Total

Generalfund operating results, as disclosed below

School grants operating results
City capital projects operating results
Non-major funds operating results

$ 1,477,068
(6,708)

(3,794,723)
545,381

$ (1, 778,982)

The general fund is the main operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year,

unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $9,574,005 while total fund balance was

$11,07b,550. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both

unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to totalfund expenditures.

9



The fund balance of the general fund increased by $1,477,068 during the current fiscal year

Key factors in this change are as follows:

General
Fund

Revenues:
Actual revenues and operating transfers in
lnception of note
GASB Statement No. 54:

To record revenue of the blended funds
To eliminate transfers between the generalfund and blended funds

Change in deferred tax revenue relating to 60-day revenue recognition

recognized aS revenue on the GAAP basis, but not on the budgetary basis

Change in miscellaneous revenue relating to difference between reduction

in lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources related to leases

128,427

e.574\
45,22 1,214

Expenditures:
Actual expenditures and operating transfers out

lnception of note
Encumbrances, beginning
Encumbrances, ending
GASB Statement No. 54:

To record expenditures of the blended funds during the year

To eliminate transfers between the general fund and blended funds

Total

180,598
764)

$ 44,937,864
100,000

127,762
(70,265)

43,763,782
100,000
984,433

(1,223,903)

43 744 146

$ 1,477,068

For the purposes of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No' 54, the

activity of the capital reserve funds and the landfill trust fund are included with the General

Fund. However, for budgetary purposes, the capital reserve funds and the landfill trust fund

are not budgeted items.

Proprietarv funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the

businessLype€ctvities reported in the government-wide financial statements, but in more

detail.

Unrestricted net position of the enterprise funds at the end of the year are $1 1,497,016, a

change of ($88,794) in comparison with the prior year.

Other factors concerning the finances of proprietary funds have already been addressed in

the entity-wide discussion of business-type activities.

l0



E. GENERAL UND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The following is a summary of changes from the original budget adopted by the City

Council. ndditional detailsare available in EXHIBIT D, Budget and Actual, in the financial

statements.

FY 2022-2023

Original budget adopted by the City Council,

Ordinance 9-22, March 21, 2022

Supplemental appropriation, Ordinance 9-23,

December 12,2022

Supplemental appropriation, Ordinance 14-23,

February 6,2023

Supplemental appropriation, Ordinance 16-23,

February 21,2023

Supplemental appropriation, Ordinance 17 -23,

March 6,2023

S upplem ental appropriation, O rd i nance 22-23,

May 15,2023

Total Budget

$ 53,739,343

40,000

47,410

40,000

185,482

168,000

$54,220,235

The overall budget increased by $1 ,627,833 from the priorfiscal yearto currentfiscal year;

a 3.10o/o increase.

F. CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. Total investment in capital assets for governmental and business-type

activities at year-end amounted to $89,760,839 (net of accumulated depreciation), a change

of $33,821 ,757 from the prior year. This investment in capital assets includes land,

buildings and system, improvements, and machinery and equipment.

Lonq-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt outstanding was

$33,821 ,757, all of which was backed by the full faith and credit of the government.

Additional information on capital assets and long-term debt can be found in the footnotes to

the financial statements.

G. ECONOMIC FACTORS

During fiscal year 2023, continued to see strong employment numbers, increasing real

estate prices, and rising interest rates experienced throughout the State. The City continues

to see strong commercial growth along the High Street and Route 108 corridors. There also

continues to be strong mix of commercial and residential growth throughout the City,

including the downtown core.
ll



REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Somersworth's
finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning

any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to:

Office of Finance Director

City of Somersworth

One Government Way

Somersworth, New Hampshire 03878

12
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EXHIBITA
CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Statemenl of Net Position
June 30. 2023

Govemmental
Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Taxes receivable (net)

Accounts receivable (net)

Lease receivables

Intergovemmental receivable

Prepaid items

Inventory
Remediation receivable

Noncurrent assets:

Intergovemmental receivable

Remediation receivable

Lease receivables

Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress

Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amounts related to pensions

Amounts related to other postemployment benefits

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits payable

Retainage payable

Contracts payable

Accrued interest payable

Intergovernmental payable

Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Unavailable revenue - student balances

Amounts related to leases

Amounts related to pensions

Amounts related to other postemployment benefits

Total defened inflows ofresources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 12,982,204
13,214,158

838,918

183,952
87,316

l,980,563
59,498

$ 24,678,943
13,214,158

838,918

r,284,858
87,316

2,106,587
71,910

105,591

90,09090,090

2,882,880
1,528,897

12,359,233
48,139,684

g 1r,696,739

I,100,906

126,024
12,412

I 05,59 I

244,774

665,88 I
28,596,041
42,548,368

244,774

2,882,880
1,528,897

13,025,114
76,735,725

94,347,393 136,895,761

8,88 l,130
318,675

250,938
10,695

9,132,068
329,370

9, I 99,805 261,633 9,461,438

1,868,023

147,236

383,53 8

902,199
243,158

t1,433

2,312,757
67,624,616

273,325

1,85 1,469

18,041,071

20,436,137

2,117,779
165,602
385,688

902,199
516,483

11,433

4,164,226

85,665,687

249,756
18,366

2,150

't3,492,960 93,929,097

11,754,400
20,050

l,065,071
278,069

1,843,509

5,973
78,873

tt,754,400
20,050

l,065,071
284,042

r,922,382

14,961,099 84,846 15,045,945

10,792,002

1r,497,016 (16,964,317\

$ 15,093,139 s 22,289,018

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
t3
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51,985,376
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EXHIBIT B
CITY OF SOMERSIYORTH, NEIY HAMPSHIRE

Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and

Change in Net Position
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Governmental activities:
General government

Public safety

Highways and streets

Sanitation
Health

Welfare
Culture and recreation

Conservation
Education
Food service

Economic development
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer

Other
Total business-type activities

Total

$ (2,205,968) $
(s,266,6s3)
(2,s72,668)

(27,60r)
(174,781)
(136,523)
(372,81 l)

(1,492)
(18,016,401)

(841)
(846)

$ 2,656,1 19

6,600,552
3,694,476

163,673

174,781
144,919
556,027

1,492
31,130,532

930,632
846

888.408

233,241 $

8s4,946
235,040

l3 I,280

353,482
727,238

486,34s

$ (2,205,968)

(5,266,6s3)
(2,s72,668)

(27,60t)
(174,781)
(136,s23)
(372,811)

(t,492)
( r 8,016,401)

(841)
(846)

(888.408)

Expenses

Charges

for
Services

$ 216,910 $

125,471

159,530

4,792

8,396

173,407

188,278

348,212

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

Govemmental

Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

(29.664.993)

366,786

563,729
(4,548)

9,809

t2,439,508
581,579

46.942.457 t,224,996 14"485,403 1,567,065

(888,408)
(29,664,993)

2,37t,629
2,502,7',78

6l 9,5 l8

2,738,415

3,026,s44
6t4,970

22,888

$ 14,485,403

r7,075

l7,075
-5--TJ8-'4J4-'0- re,6@

28,661,192
380,991

2,092,407
403,093

r,048,123

907,78s
1,099,607

34,593, r 98

4,928,205

10.164.934

925,967 925,967
925,967 (28,739,026)

366,786
563,',t29

(4.548)

925,967

21.363.051

28,661,192
380,99r

2,092,407
403,093

1,048,123

907,785

1.099,607

5,493,925 6,379,929ws 52,436,382

General revenues:

Taxes:

Property
Other

Motor vehicle permit fees

Licenses and other fees

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

Unrestricted investment earnings

Miscellaneous
Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position, beginning, as restated (see Note 19)

Net position, ending $ r5,093,139

34.s93.198

5,8s4,172

31.527.985

$ 22,289,018 $ 37.382.157



EXHIBITC.I
CITY OF SOMERSIYORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Governmental Fands
Balance Sheet
June 30,2023

General

School
Grants

City
Capital

Projects

Other
Govemmental

Funds

Total
Govemmental

Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Taxes receivable (net)

Accounts receivable

Lease receivables

Intergovemmental receivable

Interfund receivable

Prepaid items

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Acuued salaries and benefits payable

Retainage payable

Contracts payable

Intergovernmental payable

Interfund payable

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Unavailable revenue - student balances

Amounts related to leases

Total defened inflows ofresources

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
ofresources, and fund balances

$ 1,235,607

147,179

159,288

22,952
1r,433

s I,868,023
147,236

383,538

902,199
11,433

s 26,040,727 $ 1,054,184 $ 1,338,923 $ 3,009,999 $ 31,443,833

g 471,946 $ 160,470
57

224,250
325,417 553,830

t7,31855 1,009 568,327

3,880,7561,576,459 1,022,955 549,667 731,675

12,328,647_
20,050

12,328,647

20,050
1,065,0711,065 ,071

13,393,718 20,050 13,413,768

$ 10,232,707

12,636,839
778,918
154,345

1,616,213

s $ 1,338,923 s 1,410,574

577,319
60,000
29,607

926,379
6,120

$ 12,982,204
13,214,158

838,918

183,952
1,616,213
1,980,563

568,327

59,498

I,054,1 84

562,207

59,498

$

59,498 172,807

r,367,806
626,350

91,31 I

232,30s
2,188,291

839,494
t,315,214
9,s74,005

31,229 789,256

213,144

1,223,903
9,574,005

I 1,070,550 31.229 789,2s6 14,r49,309

$ 26,040,',127 $ 1,054,184 $ 1,338,923

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
15
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EXHIBIT C.2
CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds to the Starement of Net Position
June 30,2023

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net

Position are different because:

Total fund balances ofgovernmental funds (Exhibit C-l)

capital assets used in govemmental activities are not current financial resources,

therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Cost
Less accumulated depreciation

Pension and other postemployment benefit (OPEB) related deferred outflows of

resources and deferred inflows ofresources are not due and payable in the current year, and

therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

Deferred inflows ofresources related to pensions

Defened outflows of resources related to OPEB

Defened inflows of resources related to OPEB

Interfund receivables and payables between governmental funds are

eliminated on the Statement of Net Position.

Receivables

Payables

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures'

and therefore, are not reported in the govemmental funds.

Property taxes are recognized on an accrual basis in the Statement of
Net Position and on a modified accrual basis in the govemmental funds.

Deferred inflows ofresources - property taxes

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in govemmental funds.

Accrued interest payable

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period,

therefore, are not reported in the govemmental funds.

Bonds
Unamortized bond premium

Notes payable

Compensated absences

Pollution remediation liability
Net pension liability
Other postemployment benefi ts

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit A)

$

$ 104,271,224
(43,772.307\

8,881,130
(278,069)

318,675

(1,843,509)

(568,327)

568,327

$ 16,710,956

1,443,791
1,150,796

1,654,666

6,006,000
35,949,988
7,021,176

$ 14,149,309

60,498,917

7,078,227

2,972,970

574,247

(243,1s8)

(6e,937 "373\
$ 15,093,139

$

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-3

CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

General

School

Grants

City

Capital

Projects

Other

Governmental

Funds

Total

Governmental

Funds

REVENUES

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovemmental

Charges for services

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cunent:

General govemment

Public safety

Highways and streets

Sanitation

Health

Welfare

Culture and recreation

Conservation

Education

Food service

Economic development

Debt service:

Principal

Interest

Other

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (defi ciency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

OTHER FTNANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Note proceeds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning, as restated (seeNote 19)

Fund balances, ending

$ 29, I 10,610

2,428,824

t1,192,194

600,276

73

3,646,522

60,000

66,676

2,501,191

624,720

71,411

$ 29,170,610

2,495,500

17,347,849

1,224,996

$ $ $

7,942

4,350 I,760,134

45,01 6.277 3,646,s22 12.292 3,323,998 51,999.089

2,392,909

7,044,204

2,987,683

257,319

176,995

147,918

459,748

1,593,693

1,039,394

431,104

422,683

26,715,890 3,653,230

12,609

351,561

1,097,337

2,405,518

7,395,765

4,085,020

257,319

r76,995

147,918

530,887

I,553

30,544,238

949,153

846

t,6t4,410
r,039,394

431,104

4,29'.7,951

71,t39
I,553

175,1 18

949,153

846

3,807,01 5

20,717

68,253

43,670,386 3,653.230 3,807,015 2, 747.440 53,878,071

1,345,891 (6,708) (3,794.723) 576,558 (1, 878.982)

104,937

(73,760)

100,000

73,760

(104,937)

178,697

(178,697)

100,000

l3l 177 (31,177) 100.000

1,477,068 (6,708)

37,937

(3,794,723) 545,381

1,712,893

(1,778,982)

9 979

$ 11,070,550 s 3r,229 $ 789,256

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-4

CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Reconciliation ofthe Statemenl of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended Jane 2023

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the Statement of Activities

are different because:

Net change in fund balances of govemmental funds (Exhibit C-3)

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, while govemmental

activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life ofthe assets.

Capital outlay expenditures exceeded depreciation expense in the current year, as follows:

Capitalize d cap ital out lay

Depreciation expense

Transfers in and out between governmental funds are eliminated

on the Statement of Activities.
Transfers in
Transfers out

Revenue in the Statement ofActivities that does not provide current financial

resources is not reported as revenue in the governmental funds.

Change in deferred inflows ofresources for property taxes

Proceeds from issuing long-term liabilities provide current financial resources to

govemmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net

Position. Repayment of long-term liabilities is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but

the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

Note proceeds

Repayment of bond princiPal

Repayment of note payables

Amortization of bond premium

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the

use ofcurrent financial resources, and therefore, afe notleported as expenditures in

govemmental funds.

Decrease in accrued interest expense

Increase in compensated absences payable

Changes in pollution remediation receivable and payable balances

Net change in net pension liability, and defened

outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions

Net change in net other postemployment benefits liability and deferred

outflows and inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits

Changes in net position of governmental activities (Exhibit B)

$ 6,664,423
(2,648,700)

$ (r78,697)
t78.697

$ (l00,ooo)
t,614,410

386,934
164,718

s 30,438
(75,70e)
9l,910

(264,385)

971.575

s (r,778,e82)

4,015,723

(128,427)

2,066,062

753.829

$ 4,928,205

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITD
CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget andActual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30' 2023

Budgeted Amounts

Variance
Positive

Final Actual

REVENUES
Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovemmental

Charges for services

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Elected leadership

City management

Finance and administration
Development services

Fire and rescue

Police
Public works and utilities
School

Debt service:

Principal
Interest
Other

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Increase in nonspendable fund balance

Unassigned fund balance, beginning

Unassigred fund balance, ending

44,074,501 44,555,393

214,576

532,690

1,549,432
845, I 96

2,489,2'18

4,239,887

3,355,212
28,534,754

4,144
97

79,042
97,368
95,780

204,399
60,027

324,832

509,458

304,766

431,t04
622,905 60,446

43,629,258 926,135

$ 28,900,031

2,095,000
10,484,120

583,285

763,766

$ 28,900,031

2,095,000
10,877,602

583,285
763,766

43,219,684

$ 28,982,183

2,428,824
11,192,194

600,276

I,559, I 85

$ 82,152
333,824
314,592

16,99t
795.419

97842,826,202 44,762,662

218,720
532,787

r,628,4',74

942,564
2,385,058
4,644,286
3,375,239

28,859,586

509,458

304,766

431,104
242,459

218,720

532,787

1,628,474
942,564

2,585,058
4,444,286
3,415,239

28,859,586

509,458
304,766
431,t04
683,351

\t,248,299\ (l 709) I, 133.404 2,469,113

87,000

l 38.70 l )

174,410
1 38.701)

175,202

(134,524)

40,678

792
4,177

(5 1.701) 35.709 4,969

$ (1,300,000) $ (1,300,000) 1,174,082

(36,682)

8,469,557

s 9,606,957

$ 2,474,082

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT 8.1
CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Proprielary Funds
Statement of Nel Position

June 30,2023

Business-type Activities
Entemrise Funds Total

Enterprise Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable (net)

Intergovemmental receivable

Prepaid items

Inventory
Noncurrent assets:

Intergovernmental receivable

Capital assets:

Land and construction in Progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amounts related to pensions

Amounts related to other postemployment benefits

Total deferred outfl ows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits payable

Retainage payable

Accrued interest payable

Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Amounts related to pensions

Amounts related to other postemployment benefits

Total deferred inflows ofresources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

IJnrestricted

Total net position

7 30,153,284 1,1) ))1

Water

$ 5,129,367

450,144

6,206
100,809

257,974

Sewer Nonmaior

$ 6,332,954
517,735
126,024

6,206

$ 234,418 $

t33,027

4,782

11,696,',t39

1,100,906

126,024
12,412

105,591

244,774

665,881

28,596,041
42,548,368

244,774

7

407,907

22,517,684

134,902

6,006

I16,036
4.689

1,282,098
14,151,530

250,938
10,695

261,633

249,756
I 8,366

2,150
273,325

1,851,469

18,041,071

20,436,137

140,908 120.725

118,923

10,046

2,150
61,37r

s69,371
889.541

82,317

8,320

211,954

48,516

3,

4,65 1.402 t5,736,219 48.516

3,211
52.090

2,762
26,783
29,545

5,973
78,873

55,301 84,846

8,t23,36t 10,'192,002

11,497,016323,7n

$ 7,4s7,062 $ 14,508,24s $ 323,711 $ 22,289,018

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E-2

CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Proprietary Funds

Statemenl of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Yeat Ended June 30' 2023

Business-type Activities

Water

Enterprise Funds

Total
Enterprise

FundsSewer Nonmajor

Operating revenues:

User charges

Other charges

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Salaries and wages

Operation and maintenance

Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating gain (loss)

Nonoperating revenue (exPense):

Intergovernmental revenues

Capital contributions
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expense)

Change in net position

Net position, beginning
Net position, ending

g 2,674,242
64.173

s 3,026,s44 s 614,970 $ 6,315,756
64,173

6,379,929738.415 3,026,544 614,970)

718,255
1,026,250

546,939

569,375
784,628
890.810

619,518

t,287,630
2,430,396
t,437,749

2,291,444 813 619,s18 5,r55,77s

446.971 78t,731 (4,548) 154

22,888
t7,075

22,888
17,07s

(80, l 85) (257,965) (338, r50)

(80, r 85) (2 18,002) 187)

366,786
7,090,276

@
563,729

t3,944,516

(4,s48)
328,259

925,967
21,363,051

$ 14,508,245 s 323,711 s 22,289,018

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E-3
CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

ProPrietary Funds

Slatement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Business-type Activities

Water Sewer Nonmajor

Enterprise Funds

Total

Enterprise

Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM:

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users

Payments to employees

Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Principal paid on bonds and notes

Acquisition and construction offixed assets

Interest paid

Capital contributions

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Grant - water asset management

State aid - wastewater infrastructure

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Operating gain (loss)

Ad.justments to reconcile operating gain (loss) to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense

Changes in accounts receivable

Changes in prepaid items

Changes in inventory

Changes in deferred outflows ofresources

Changes in accounts payable

Changes in accrued payroll

Changes in retainage payable

Changes in compensated absences payable

Changes in OPEB liability

Changes in net pension liability

Changes in deferred inflows ofresources

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

10.308) (r,277.096\ (616,76s)

$ 2,836,298

(716,623)

$ 3,t69,364 $ 594,272

(580.098)

$ 6,s99,934

(1,296,721)

169)(e

1,209,367 1,312,170

(510,308)

(340,866)

(14s,756)

(1,222,900)

(256,s99)

(40'r,897)

t7,075

(1,733,208)

(597,465)

(553,653)

17,075

0) (1,870,32r) (2,867.251)

22,888

122,387

22,888

122,387

145.275 145,275

212,437

4,9t6,930

(412,876) (22,493)

256,911

(222,932)

11,919,6716,745.830

s 5,129,367 $ 6,332,954 $ 234,418 $ t1,696,739

Reconciliation of Operating Gain (Loss) to Net Cash Provided ((/secl) by Operating Activilies

s 446,97r $ 781 ,73 I $ (4,s48) $l 154

(3,560)

(8e,727)

14,941

1,429

(28s,789)

(12,152)

(93,701)

I 13,878

151.084)

530,439 (t7,945)

s r,209,367 $ r,3t2,t'70 $ (22,493)

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement'
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546,939

97,883

(e86)

3,262

(l 16,341)

49,623

2,276

(644)

70,503

1 93,1 33

(83,2s2)

762.396

890,810

142,820

(e86)

(20,6e8)

6,313

1,437,749

220,005

(1,972)

(2e8)

(206,068)

70,877

3,705

(285,78e)

(r2,796)
(23, I 98)

307,011

(234,336)

890

$ 2,499,044



EXHIBIT F-[
CITY OF SOMERSITORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 2023

Private

Purpose

Trust

Custodial Funds

Escrows Taxes

$ 945,3 15 $ $

Town Clerk Fees

State Portion Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

NET POSITION
Restricted

192,645 945.315

$ 3,107

I 89,538

$ 948,422

l 89.53 8

t,t37,960

378

$ 192,645 $ 944,937 $ $

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
23
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$ 1,137,582



EXHIBIT F-2
CITY OF SOMERSIryORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

For lhe Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2023

Private
Purpose

Trust Escrows Taxes

Custodial Funds

Town Clerk Fees

State Portion Total

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Investment earnings

Taxes collected for other governments

Motor vehicle payments

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Scholarships

Payments oftaxes to other governments

Payments for escrow purposes

Motor vehicle payments to state

Total deductions

Change in fiduciary net position

Net position, beginning
Net position, ending

$ s 708,564 $ $

689,194
689,194

$ 708,564
5,710

22,140,201

689 194

23,543,669

600

22,t40,201
109,940

689,r94

603,734

533,848w

5,710
22,140,201

5,710 708.564 22,140,201

600
22,140,20t

109,940
689 194

600

5,110

I 87,535w

109,940 22,140,201 689 t94 22,939,935

598,624

346,313
s 944,937 $ $

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF SOMERSIYORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JaNE 30,2023

NOTE
1

l-A
l-B
1-C
1-D
l-E
l-F
1-G
1-H
1-I
l-J
l-K
l-L
l-M
l-N
1-O
l-P
1-Q
l-R
l-s
l-T

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus.

Investments..........
Receivables
Inventory....

Accounts Payable ...

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources ......

Leases
Long-term Obligations

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Budgetary Reconciliation to GAAP Basis

Interfund Balances and Transfers

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

2
2-A
2-B
2-C

6

7

8

9

l0

ll
l2

t3
l3-A
13-B

t4

15

t6

17

DETAILED NOTES ONALL FUNDS

City of Somersworth Retiree Health Benefit Program

State Aid to Water Pollution Projects............

Commitments.

Governmental and Business-type Activities and Fiduciary Funds Net Position
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CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEItr HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,2023

Governmental Fund Balances l8

t9

20

2t

22

23

Prior Period Adjustments

Risk Management..........

Tax Abatements..............

Contingent Liabilities....

Subsequent Events.........
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CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,2023

NOTE I -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Somersworth, New Hampshire (the City), have been prepared in conformity with U.S'

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting

Standards Board (GASB) and other authoritative sources.

The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described below.

I-A Reporting Entity

The City of Somersworth is a municipal corporation governed by an elected nine-member City Council and City Manager. In

evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential component units.

The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity is made by applying the criteria set forth by the GASB

Statement No. 14 (as amended). The City has no component units to include in its reporting entity.

1-B Basis of Accounting ancl Meusurement Focus

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The

operations of each fund are acJounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, defened

outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses' as

appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which

they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Government-wide Financial Stutemenls - The City's government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position

and a Statement of Activities. These statements present summaries of governmental and business-type activities for the City

accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary activities of the City are not included in these statements.

These statements are presented on an "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Accordingly, all of the Cit5/'s assets, defened outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, including

capital asiets and long-terrn liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities

prisents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis ofaccounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are

Larned whileixpens"r ur" r"cognizedin the period in which the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash

flows. The typis of transactions reported as program revenues for the City are reported in three categories: l) charges for

services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.

Certain eliminations have been made to interfund activities, payables, and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of
Net position have been eliminated, except those representing balances between the govemmental activities and the business-type

activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column.

Governmental Fund Finuncial Stutements - Include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and nonmajor funds aggregated. An accompanying statement is presented to

reconcile and explain the differences in fund balances and changes in fund balances as presented in these statements to the net

position and changes in net position presented in the government-wide financial statements. The City has presented all major

funds that met those qualifications.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified

accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are

considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the

current period. For this purpose, the City generally considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the

end of the current fiscal period, with the exception of reimbursement-based grants, which use a period of one year. Property

taxes, licenses, and permiis, intergovemmental i"uenu", and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to

be susceptible to acirual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Expenditure-driven grants are

recognizid as revenue when the qualif,ing expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. All
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the govemment.
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CITY OF SOMERSII/ORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JaNE 30,2023

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting' However, debt service

expenditures, is well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when

payment is due.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - is the City's primary operating fund. The general fund accounts for all financial resources except those

required to be accounted for ilanother fund. The primary revenue sources include property taxes, State grants and motor

urhi.l, permit fees. The primary expenditures ar" io. general government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation,

culture and recreation, debt t.rui"" and capital outlal,. Under GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balqnce Reporting and

Governmentql Fund Type Definitions guidance, the pollution remediation and expendable trust funds are consolidated in the

general fund.

School Grants Fund - accounts for the resources received from various School District related federal, state, and local

agencies. The resources are restricted to accomplishing the various objectives ofthe grantor agencies.

City Capital Projects Fund - the City capital projects fund accounts for the activity pertaining to the various

construction/renovation projects relating to the City.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to

expenditures for specifi ed purposes.

Capital Projects Funds - are used to account for the financial resources and activities relating to specific construction

projects.

permanent Fund - is used to record activity of legal trusts for which the interest on the corpus provides funds for the

permanent funds including the City's cemetery operations'

All the governmental funds not meeting the criteria established for major funds are presented in the other governmental column

of the fund financial statements. The City reports twelve nonmajor governmental funds.

Proprietory Fund Finsncial Stutemenls - Include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and

Changes in Net position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and for the non-major funds aggregated.

proprietary funds are reported using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

accordingly, all assets, deferred outflo*r of resources, liabilities (whether current or noncurrent), and deferred inflows of
,.ro,r.""r-ure included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are

iecognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognizedin the period in which the liability is incurred'

regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All
ot-her revinues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses thatare essential to the primary

operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses.

The City reporls the following major proprietary funds:

Water Fund - accounts for the activities related to the operation of the water treatment plant, wells, and water system.

Sewer Fund - accounts for the activities related to the operation of the sewer treatment plant, pumping station, and sewer

lines.

The City also reports one nonmajor proprietary fund, the solid waste fund.

Fitluciary Fund Finsncisl Stutemenls - Include a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary

Net posiiion. The City's fiduciary funds are private purpose trust and custodial funds, which are custodial in nature and do not

involve measurement of results of operations. These funds are accounted for on a spending or "economic resources"

measurement focus and the accrual basis ofaccounting as are the proprietary funds explained above.
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CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JaNE 30,2023

The City reports the following fiduciary funds:

Private Purpose Trust Fund - are used to report trust arrangements, other than pension and investment trusts, under which

principal and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Custodial Fund - are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating results. A custodial fund is used

to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other governments.

l-C Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Depositi with financial insiitutioni consist primarily of demand deposits and savings accounts. A cash pool is maintained that is

uuuilubl. for use by all funds. Each fund's portion of this pool is reflected on the combined financial statements under the

caption "cash and cash equivalents."

The treasurer is required to deposit such moneys in solvent banks in state or the Public Deposit Investment Pool pursuant to New

Hampshire RSA 3 43:22. Funds may be deposited in banks outside of the state if such banks pledge and deliver to a third party

custodial bank or the Federal Reserve Bank, collateral security for such deposits, United States government or government

agency obligations or obligations to the State of New Hampshire in value at least equal to the amount of the deposit in each case'

I-D Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a

maturity when purchased of three months or less and all local govemment investment pools to be cash equivalents.

l-E Investments

State statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and investments available as follows:

New Hampshire law authorizes the City to invest in the following type of obligations:
. Obligations of the United States government,
. The public deposit investment pool established pursuant to RSA 383:22,
. Savings bank deposits,
. Certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements of banks incorporated under the laws of the State of New

Hampshire or in banks recognized by the State treasurer.

Any person who directly or indirectly receives any such funds or moneys for deposit or for investment in securities of any kind

strall, prior to acceptanie of such funds, make available at the time of such deposit or investment an option to have such funds

,.rur.i by collateial having a value at least equal to the amount of such funds. Such collateral shall be segregated for the

exclusive benefit of the City. Only securities defined by the bank commissioner as provided by rules adopted pursuant to

RSA 386:57 shall be eligible to be pledged as collateral.

Fair Vafue Measurements of Investments - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and

Application, except for investments measured using net asset value (NAV) as a practical expedient to estimate fair value, the

City categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments within the fair value hierarchy established by US GAAP. The

faii valuJhierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used for fair value measurement into three levels as follows:

Level I - Level I inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets' A quoted

price for an identical asset or liability in an active market (e.g., an equity security traded on a major exchange)

provides the most reliable fair value measurement and, if available, should be used to measure the fair value in that

particular market.

Level 2 - The categorization of an asset/liability as Level I requires that it is traded in an active marker. If an

instrument is not traded in an active market, it may fall to Level 2. Level2 inputs are inputs that are observable, either

directly or indirectly, but do not qualifu as Level l.
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CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEIT HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JaNE 30,2023

Level 3 - Reporting entities may use unobservable inputs to measure fair value if relevant observable inputs are not

available, theieby allowing for situations in which there is little, if any market activity for the asset or liability at the

measurement date. These unobservable inputs are considered Level 3.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level I inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs. In certain instances

where the determination of th" fuir value measurement is based on inputs from different levels of the fair value hierarchy, is the

level in the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement' Investments

are reported at fair value. If an investment is held directly by the City and an active market with quoted prices exists, such as for

domestic equity securities, the market price of an identical security is used to report fair value and is classified in Level 1.

Corporate fi-xed income securities and cirtain governmental securities utilize pricing that may involve estimation using similar

securities or trade dates and are classified in Level 2. Fair values for shares in registered mutual funds and exchange-traded

funds are based on published share prices and classified in Level 1.

In determining fair value, the City utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use

of unobservable inputs to the extent possible.

Investments in Certain External Inyestment Pools - In accordance with GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External

Investment pools and pool Participants, the City held investments with the New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool

(NHpDIp). The NHpDIp meatut"i all of its investments at amortized cost. There are no redemption restrictions and shares may

be redeemed by the City in accordance with the NHPDIP's Information Statement.

l-F Receivables

Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent amounts due to the City at June 30. They are aggregated into a single

accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) line for certain funds and aggregated columns. They consist primarily

oftaxes, billing for charges, and other user fees.

l-G Inventory

The inventories of the City are valued at cost using the first'in/first-out (FIFO) method. The inventories of the City's water and

solid waste funds consist of expendable materials and supplies held for consumption. The cost of such inventories is recorded as

expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

I-H Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.

1-I Capital Assets

Capital assets are reported in the applicable govemmental or business-type activities columl in the government-wide financial

staiements but are not reported in tnL nrnO financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial

individual cost of more than $25,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of five years for machinery, vehicles, and equipment

and $50,000 for all other assets. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or

constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition vale at the date of donation. When purchased, such assets are

recorded as expenditures in a governmental fund and capitalized as assets in the government-wide Statement of Net Position.

Capital assets of the proprietary fund are capitalized in the fund and the cost basis for the proprietary fund capital assets is the

same as that used for general capital assets.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The costs of normal maintenance

and repairs ihat do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.
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CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JaNE 30,2023

Capital assets of the City are depreciated (except for land and construction on progress which are not depreciated) using the

straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years

Capital Asset Classes:

Infrastructure 15 - 75

Buildings and building improvements 15 - 50

Vehicles and equiPment 5 '20

l-J Intedand Activities

Interfund activities are reported as follows:

Interfund Receivables and payables - Activity between funds that are representative of lending/bonowing anangements

outst-anding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans).

Any residrial balances outstanding b.t*""n the governmental activities and business activities are reported in the government-

wide financial statements as "intemal balancesl" Interfund receivables and payables between funds are eliminated in the

Statement of Net Position.

Interfund Transfers - Interfund transfers represent flows of assets without equivalent flows of assets in return and without a

requirement for repayment. In governmental funds, transfers are reported as other financing uses in the funds making the

ffansfers and other financing ,o.ir.r, in the funds receiving the transfers. In proprietary funds, transfers are reported after

nonoperating revenues and Jxpenses. In the government-wide financial statements, all interfund transfers between individual

governmental funds have been eliminated.

I-K Properly Taxes

property tax billings occur semi-annually and are based on the assessed inventory values as of April I of each year' Warrants for

the yeai were issuid on May 26,2022, and December 6,2022, and due on July 1,2022, and January 9,2023. For any regular

property taxes issued, the interest accrues atarate of8% on bills outstanding after the due date and l4o/o ontax liens outstanding.

property tax receivables are recognized on the levy or lien date, which is the date the tax warrant is issued. Current year property

tax reciivables represent taxes levied but not remitted to the city at June 30, 2023, and unpaid taxes' The succeeding year

property tax receivable represent taxes certified by the City to be collected in the next fiscal year for the purposes set out in the

tua'g.t fo, the next fiscal year. Although the sucieeding year properly tax receivable have been recorded, the related revenue is

,.rportrd as a deferred inflLw of resourCes in both the government-wide and fund financial statements and will not be recognized

as revenue until the year for which it is levied.

In connection with the setting of the tax rate, City officials with the approval of the Department of Revenue Administration,

establish and raise through taxation an amount foitax abatement and refunds, known as overlay. This amount is reported as a

reduction in tax revenu. -O ir adjusted by management for any reserve for uncollectable taxes at year-end. The property taxes

collected by the City include taxes levied for Strafford Count5r, which are remitted to this entity as required by law.

The City net assessed valuation as of April l,2}22,utilized in the setting of the tax rate was as follows:

For the New Hampshire education tax $ l,l l3'670,748

For all other taxes $ 1,134,'772,148
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CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JaNE 30,2023

Property

Taxes

Assessed

The tax rates and amounts assessed for the year ended June 30, 2023 were as follows:

Per $1,000

of Assessed

Valuation

Municipal portion

School porlion:

State of New Hampshire

Local

County portion

Total

$8.55 $ 9,70',7,062

$ 1.35

$15.65

$2.54

l,s00,784

17,7s7,894

2,88 1.523

$28.09 $ 31,847,263

|-L Accounts Payable

Accounts payable represent the gross amount of expenditures or expenses incumed as a result of normal operations, but for which

no actual payment has yet been issued to vendors/providers as ofJune 30,2023.

l-M Deferred Outflows/InJlows of Resources

Deferred outJlows of resources, a separate financial statem€nt element, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance

thit applies io a future period(s) and thus will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses) until then- The City has

two iferns that qualiff ior reporting in this category. Deferred outflows related to pensions and deferred outflows related to

OpEB are repor;d inthe gov-ern..nt-*id" Statement of Net Position for various estimate differences that will be amortized and

recognized over fufure years.

Deferred inflows of resources, a separate financial statement element, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance

that applies to a future period(s) und ro will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Although

certain revenues are measurable, they are not available. Available means collected within the current year or expected to be

collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current year. The City has four types of items which qualifu

for reporting in this iategory. Deferred inflowi of resources related to pensions and OPEB are reported in the government-wide

Statement of N"t Position for various estimate differences that will be amortized and recognized over future years' Property

taxes not collected within 60-days of the fiscal year end, subsequent period tax commitments and taxes collected in advance are

all reported as deferred inflows of resources. In addition, unavailable revenues from student balances arises when the related

eligible expenditures will not be made until the subsequent period,

1 -N Compensated Absences

General leave for the City includes vacation, sick, and retirement stipend pay. General leave is based on an employee's length of
employment and is earned ratably during the span of employment. Upon retirement or termination, employees are paid ftill
value for any accrued general leave earned as set forth by the City's personnel policy.

Vested or accumulated general leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as

an expenditure and a nrnO tiatitity of the governmental fund that will pay it. Amounts of vested or accumulated general leave

that are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available resources are maintained separately and represent a reconciling

item between the fund and government-wide presentations.

l-O Leases

Lessor * The City is a lessor for noncancellable leases of land and space on City property for cellular infrastructure. The City

recognizes a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources in the govemment-wide and governmental fund financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,2023

At the commencement of a lease, the City initially measures the lease receivable at the present value of payments expected to be

received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease receivable is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments received.

The defeged inflow of resources is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for lease payments

received at or before the lease commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred inflow of resources is recognized as revenue over

the life of the lease term.

Key estimates and judgments include how the City determines (1) the discount rate it uses to discount the expected lease receipts

to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) Iease receipts.

. The City uses its estimated incremental bonowing rate as the discount rate for leases.

. The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease. Lease receipts included in the measurement of

the lease receivable is composed of fixed payments from the lessee.

The City monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and will remeasure the lease

receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the

lease receivable.

I -P Lo ng-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other longtenn

obligati'ons are reported as liabilities in the govem."ntal activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund Statements of
Net Position. Bond premiums are defened and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Relqted to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings qnd Direct

Placements,the City utilizes the following classifications to categorize the financial transactions:

Direct Borrowings - financial transactions for a note or a loan where the City negotiates cefiain terms with a single

lender and are not offered for public sale.

Direct placements - financial transactions for the sale of bonds where the City engages with a single buyer or limited

number of buyers without a public offering.

I-Q Defined Benetit Pension Plan

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and as

amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date and

GASB Statement No. 82 Pension Issues - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 67, No. 68 and No.73 requires participating

employers to recognize their proportionate share of collective net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred

inflows of resourcis, and pension expense, and schedules have been prepared to provide employers with their calculated

proportionate share of these amounts. The collective amounts have been allocated based on employer contributions during the

iespective fiscal years. Contributions from employers are recognized when legally due, based on statutory requirements.

The schedules prepared by New Hampshire Retirement System, and audited by the plan's independent auditors, require

management to rnik. a number of estimates and assumptions related to the reported amounts. Due to the inherent nature and

uncertainty of these estimates, actual results could differ, and the differences may be material.

l-R Postemployment BeneJits Other Tltan Pensions (OPEB)

The City maintains two separate other postemployment benefit plans, as follows:

New Hampshire Retirement System Ptsn - For the purposes of measuring the total other postemployment benefit (OPEB)

Iiability, diferyed outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information

about the fiduciary net position of the New Hampshire Retirement System OPEB Plan (the plan) and additions to/deductions

from the plan's fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the New Hampshire

Retirement System. For this purpose, the plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit

terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except money market investments and participating interest earning investment

contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost.
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Single Employer plsn - For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows_of resources and deferred inflows

of risources rLlated to OpEB, and OPEB 
"*penr., 

itrformation has been determined based on the City's actuarial report. For this

purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms.

1-S Net Position/Fund Balances

Government-witle Statemenls - Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the

outstanding balances of uny bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or

improvement of those assets.

Restricted net position - Results when constraints placed on net position use are either externally imposed by a third

party (statutory, bond covenant, or granting agency) or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling

iegislation. The City typically usei restricted assets first, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to

selectively defer the use until a further project.

Unrestricted net position - Consists of net position not meeting the definition of the preceding categories.

Unrestricted net position is often subject to constraints imposed by management which can be removed or modified.

Fund Balance Classffications - GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting qnd Governmental Fund Type Definitions,

provides more clearl-y defined fund balance categories to make sure the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a

government's fund balances are more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the spending

constraints:

Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form (such as prepaid items,

inveniory, or tax deeded property subject to resale); or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact'

Restricted - Amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed

by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or

(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of
the legislative body (Cify Council). These umounis cannot be used for any other purpose unless the legislative body

removes or changes tire specified use by taking the same type of action that was employed when the funds were initially

committed. Thii classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been

specifically committed for use in satisfzing those contractual requirements'

Assigned - Amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted

nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the City Council through the budgetary process.

Unassigned - Amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are reported only in the general fund.

When multiple net position/fund balance classifications are available for use, it is the government's policy to utilize the most

restricted balances first, then the next most restricted balance as needed. When components of unrestricted fund balance are

used, committed fund balance is depleted first followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.

In accordance with the City's fund balance policy, the City will strive to maintain an unassigned fund balance in its general fund

equal to 5% - l7%of the total appropriation of the community (which includes the City, School, and County). The City Council

will review this information eaih year to determine the amount, if any, of unassigned fund balance to use to balance the budget

and reduce the tax rate.
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1-T Use of Estimates

The financial statements and related disclosures are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States. Management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, deferred

outflows of resources, liabilities, and defened inflows of resources, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date

of the financial statements, and revenues and expenses/expenditures during the period reported. These estimates include

assessing the collectability of accounts receivable, ihe useful lives and impairment of capital assets, net pension liability, other

postemp'ioyment benefit liability, defened outflows and inflows of resources related to both pension and other postemployment

tenefits, and pollution remediition, among others. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically, and the effects of
revisions are reflected in the financial statements in the period they are determined to be necessary. Actual results could differ

from estimates.

NOTE 2 _ STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOANTABILITY

2-A B udg etary I nformation

General governmental revenues and expenditures accounted for in budgetary funds are controlled by a formal integrated

budgetary accounting system in accordance with various legal requirements which govern the City's operations. At its annual

meeiing, the City adopL a budget for the current year for the general, sewer, and water funds, as well as the nonmajor cable

communications and solid waste funds. Except as reconciled below, the budget was adopted on a basis consistent with US

generally accepted accounting principles.

Management may transfer appropriations between operating categories as deemed necessary, but expenditures may not legally

"*..rd 
budgeted appropriations in total. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end unless encumbered.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and continuing appropriations (certain projects and specific

items not fully expende-d at year-end) are recognized, is employed in the governmental funds. Encumbrances are not the

equivalent ofexpenditurrr, uni are therefore, t"port.d as part ofthe assigned fund balance at year-end, and are carried forward to

supplement appropriations of the subsequent year.

State statutes require balanced budgets but provide for the use ofbeginning unassigned fund balance to achieve that end. For the

fiscal year 20n:$ 300,000 of the beginning general fund unassigned fund balance was applied for this purpose.

2-B Budgetary Reconciliation to GAAP Busis

While the City reports financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund balance on the basis of generally accepted

accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a

basis of *rh r.""iptr, disbursements, and encumbrances. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance - Budget and Actual is presented for the major general fund. Differences between the budgetary basis and GAAP basis

of accounting for the general fund are as follows:

Revenues and other financing sources:

Per Exhibit D (budgetary basis)

Adjustments:
Basis differences:

Inception ofnote
GASB StatementNo.54:

To record revenue ofthe blended funds

To eliminate transfers between the general fund and blended funds

Change in deferred tax revenue relating to 60-day revenue recognition

recognized as revenue on the GAAP basis, but not on the budgetary basis

Change in miscellaneous revenue relating to difference between reduction

in lease receivable and defened inflows ofresources related to leases

Per Exhibit C-3 (GAAP basis)

s 44,937,864

$ 45,221,214

100,000

127,762

(70,265)

128,427

(2,574)
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Budgetary reconciliation to GAAP basis continued:

Expenditures and other financing uses:

Per Exhibit D (budgetary basis)

Adjustments:
Basis differences:

Inception ofnote
Encumbrances, beginning

Encumbrances, ending

GASB Statement No. 54:

To record expenditures ofthe blended funds during the year

To eliminate transfers between the general fund and blended funds

Per Exhibit C-3 (GAAP basis)

Cash per Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A)
Cash per Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds (Exhibit F-l)

Total cash and cash equivalents

$ 43,763,782

100,000

984,433
(1,223,903)

I 80,598

(60,764)

$ 43,744,146

2-C Accounting Change

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technologt Aryangements, was

implemented during fiscal year 2023. The objective of this Statement is to better meet information needs of financial statement

users by (a) establiihing uniform accounting and financial reporting requirement for subscription-based information technology

arrangements (SBITAsI; @) improving the comparability of financial statements among governments that have entered into

SBITAs; and (c) enhancing the-understandability, reliability, relevance, and consistency of information about SBITAs. This

Statement (l) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription assets (an intangible asset), and

a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments,

including implementation costs of a SBITA; and ( ) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the

standards of SBITA are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended. The City has assessed all

potential agreements that may be applicable for reporting under GASB Statement No. 96 and have determined that none of the

agreements have met the requirements of the pronouncement.

DETAILED NOTES ONALL FUNDS

NOTE 3 _ CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The City's deposits are entirely covered by Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or by collateral held by the City's

agent in the City's name. The FDIC currently insures the first $250,000 of the City's deposits at each financial institution, per

cise custodian. Deposit balances over $250,000 are insured by the collateral. As of year-end, the carrying amount of the City's

deposits was $25,627,365 and the bank balances totaled $27 ,030,420. Petty cash totaled 51,303.

Cash and cash equivalents reconciliation:

s 24,678,943
948,422

NOTE 4 _ INVESTMENTS

Note l-E describes statutory requirements covering the investment of the City funds. The City holds investments that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Because investing is not a core part of the City's mission, the City determines that

the disclosures related to these inveitments only need to be disaggregated by major type. The City categorizes its fair value

measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.
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The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30,2023

Valuation
Measurement

Investments TvDe Method

CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JaNE 30,2023

Reported

Balance

Exempt from
Disclosure

Equity exchange traded funds

Equity mutual funds
Fixed income mutual funds

Real estate investment trusts

New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool

Total

Level I
Level I
Level2
Level2

Amortized Cost

$ 143,935

43,215

522,765
31,059

12,662,722

$ 13,403,696

t43,93s
43,215

522,765

3 I,059
12,662,722

$

Interest Rate Risk - This is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.

Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

The City's investment policy staies that investment maturities for operating funds shall be scheduled to coincide with projected

cash flow needs, taking into account larger routine expenditures (payroll and accounts payable) as well as anticipated revenue

inflows. At no time shall any investment be made exceeding a maturity date in excess of one year. The Trustees of Trust Fund's

investment policy states thai for capital reserves, the portfolio's investment objectives are to maintain principal while generating

income in excess of certificates of deposits, traditional savings accounts, and money market funds. For common trust funds,

these funds have a long or perpetual-time horizon. The portfolio investment objective is to provide a total return (income plus

capital appreciation) consistenfwith the purpose of that fund that exceeds the long-term rate of inflation. At June 30,2023, all of
the City's investment maturities were exempt from disclosure'

Credit Risk - The City's investment policy does not directly address this risk. The Trustees of Trust Fund's investment policy

states that the capital ier"rues investments in corporate bonds shall be limited to those with a rating of investment grade. A

mutual fund or exchange-traded fund with an investment objective consistent with holding investment grade bonds may be used.

At June 30,2023, all of the City's investments were exempt from credit risk disclosure.

Custodial Credit Risk - This is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker/dealer) to honor a

transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an

outside party. The City's investment policy states that deposits shall be fully collateralized with the delivery of the U.S.

govemment obligations, U.S. govemment agency obligations, or obligations of the State of New Hampshire in market value at

l-east equal to fi1% of the cash deposit in eich case. Collateral shall be wired to the municipality's joint custody account at the

Federaf Reserve Bank of Boston or Federal Reserve Bank of New York no later than the day deposits and/or investments are

wired or transferred. The Trustees of Trust Fund's investment policy does not directly address this risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The City's investment policy places no limit on the amount of it may investment in any one

issuer. The Trustees of Trust Fund's investment policy states that unless specifically authorized, no single company will comprise

more than 5vo of the portfolio at the time of purchase. When a portfolio position has grown ro l\yo of the target balance, the

position will be reduced to prevent it from growing further, unless the trustees have specifically authorized the continued holding

of the position.

Investment reconciliation :

$ 13,403,696

$ 13,214,158

I 89,538

$ r 3,403,696

Investments per Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A)
Investments per Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds (Exhibit F-l)

Total investments
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NOTE 5 _ TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable represent the amount of current and prior year taxes which have not been collected as of June 30, 2023 ' The

amount has been reduced by an allowance for an estimated uncollectible amount of $122,000. Taxes receivable by year are as

follows:

Property:
Unredeemed (under tax lien):

Levy of2022
Levy of2021
Levy of2020
Levies of2019 and prior

Yield
Land use change

Less: allowance for estimated uncollectible taxes

Net taxes receivable

$ 451,388
237,592
163,04s
47,958

935

60,000
( l 22,000)

$ 83 8,9 l8

NOTE 6 _ OTHER RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30,2023,consisted of accounts (billings for police details, water, sewer, ambulance, and other user charges),

leases, intergovernmental amounts arising from grants, and pollution remediation. Receivables are recorded on the City's

financial statements to the extent that the urnoutrtr are determined to be material and substantiated not only by supporting

documentation, but also by a reasonable, systematic method of detetmining their existence, completeness, valuation, and

collectability.

Receivables as of June 30,2023 for the City's individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate including applicable

allowances for uncollectible accounts are as follows:

Governmental Funds

General

School

Grants Nonmajor Total
Governmental

Activities

Receivables:

Accounts

Lease

Intergovernmental
Remediation

Total receivables

Receivables:

Accounts

Intergovernmental

Gross receivables

Less: allowance

for uncollectibles
Net total receivables

$ 154,345 $

1,616,2r3

$ 29,607

926,379

$ 183,952

1,616,213

1,980,563

$ 183,952

t,6r6,213
1,980,563

$ 1,770,558

1,054,184
2,972.970

$ 1,054,184 $ e55,986 s 3,780,728 $ 6,753,698::
Proprietary Funds

Sewer Nonmaior TotalWater

$ 471,s44 $ 549,43 5

- 370,798

$ 133,027 $ 1,154,006

- 370,798

133,027 1,524,80447 t,544 920,233

(3 1,700)(21,400)
$ 888,s33

(53. I 00)+
$ 1,471,704$ 450,144
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NOTE 7 _ LEASE RECEIVABLES

The City had the following lease receivables as of June 30,2023

Original
Amount

Lease receivables:

Wentworth-Douglas Hospital - land

Four-Up, Inc - land

AT&T - cellular infrastructure

T-Mobile - cellular infrastructure

Business-type activities:
At cost:

Not being depreciated:

Land
Software

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Being depreciated:

Buildings and building improvements

Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Total all capital assets

2001

2008

2008

2004

2041
2040
2033

2034

$ s61,442

450,504
291,567

312,700

Issue Date

Maturity
Date

Interest Receivable at

Rate 1une30,2023

2.2Yo

2.2Vo

2.20

2.2%
s 1,616,213

Adjustments/
Deletions

$ 787,638

$ 680,273

$ 543,873

s 552,262

NOTES_CAPITALASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 is as follows:

Balance,

beginning

Governmental activities:
At cost:

Not being depreciated:

Land
Easements

Software
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Being depreciated:

Buildings and building improvements

Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Total all capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and building improvements

Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Net book value, capital assets being depreciated

Net book value, all governmental activities capital assets

075.124 (1,460,753) 104,27 1.224

Additions

Balance,

ending

s 2,334,469
170,875
183,188

6,469,541

$ $

I1.861 ( r,410,701)

$ 2,334,469
170,875

1 83,1 88

7014,6

9, I 58,073 4,6 I1.861 (1,410,701) 12,3 59.233

57,423,455
22,644,290

8,43 1,035

2,583,921

8',19.342

57,423,455

25,228,211
(50,052) 9

88,498,780 3,463.263 (50,052) 9t,91 1.991

97,656,853 8,

(27,036,642)
(7,57s,246)
(6,56r,771)

(41,173,659)

47,325,121

(t,269,779)
(978,414)
(400,507)

(2,648,700)

814,563

50,052
50,052

(28,306,421)
(8,s53,660)
(6,912,226)

(43,772,307)

48,139,684

$ 60,498,917$ 56,483,194 $ 5,426,424 $ (1,410,701)

$ s00,895
103,044

2,255,130
2,859,069

40,142,520
t4,432,130

t,169,245
55,743,895
58,602,964

61,942
61,942

$

(2,255,130)
(2,25s,130)

$ s00,895

103,044

61,942
665,881

40,293,151
t7,017,230

168

$

I 50,63 I
2,585, I 00

54,923

2,790,654
59,200,430

(Continued)

39

2,852,596 (2,25s,130)



CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEIY HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JaNE 30,2023

Balance,

Additions

Capit al ass ets continued.

Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and building improvements

Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Net book value, capital assets being depreciated

Net book value, all business-type activities capital assets

Adjustments/
Deletions

Balance,

endins

(18,819,597)
(8,575,89e)

(1,014,021)
(386,428)
(37,299)

( 19,833,61 8)

(8,962,327)

(1, 105.264), (1, 142.s63)

(28,500.760) (t,437 ,7 48) (2e,93 8.508)

27,243,135 1,352,906ffii@ T-r-ai4Fa8-@
28,596,041

$ 29,261,922

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the City based on their usage of the related assets. The amounts allocated to

each function are as follows

Governmental activities:
General government

Public safety
Highways and streets

Education
Culture and recreation

Total depreciation expense

Business-type activities :

Water

Sewer

Total depreciation expense

$ 109,024

24t,497
1,165,490
1, r 00,1 09

32,5 80

$ 2,648,700

546,938
890,810

s 1,437,748

Amount

$

NOTE 9 - INTERFAND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund Balances - The composition of interfund balances as of June 30,2023 is as follows

Payable FundReceivable Fund

General

General

Nonmajor

School grants

Nonmajor
Nonmajor

$ 551,009
11,198

6,120

$ 568,327

The outstanding balances among funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services

are provided oi reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments

between funds are made.

Interfund Transfers - The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2023 is as follows

Transfers In:

City
Grants

Fund

Transfers out:

General fund
Nonmajor funds

Total

General

Fund Total

$ 73,760
104,937

$ 178,697

$ $ 73,760

$ 73,760
104,937

_{_l04,e3?_

During the year, transfers are used to (l) move revenues from the fund with collection authority to the fund responsible for
expenditure and(2) move general fund resources to provide an annual subsidy.
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NOTE TO _ DEFERRED O(ITFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources are as follows:

Govemmental
Activities

CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JaNE 30,2023

Business-type
Activities Total

Amounts related to pensions, see Note 12

Amounts related to OPEB, see Note 13

Total deferred outfl ows of resources

$ 8,881,130
3t8,67s

$ 9,199,805

$ 250,938
10,695

$ 26r,633

$ 9,132,068

329,370

$ 9,461,438

Deferred inflows of resources are as follows

Deferred property taxes not collected within
60 days of fiscal year-end

Property taxes collected in advance

ofthe warrant due date

Student balances

Amounts related to leases, see Note 7

Amounts related to pensions, see Note 12

Amounts related to OPEB, see Note l3
Total deferred inflows ofresources

$

Govemment-wide

Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities
Govemmental Funds

Total General

574,247

11,754,400

1,065,071

Nonmajor

$-

20,050

s s74,247

11,754,400

20,050

I,065,071

s 13,413,768

Total

$ $ $

11,754,400
20,050

1,065,071

278,069

11,754,400
20,050

1,065,071

284,042
1,922,382

5,973
78,873

$ 84,846 $ 15,045,94s $ 13,393,718

NOTE 11_ LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Changes in the City's long-term liabilities consisted of the following for the year ended June 30,2023

$ 20,050
1,843,509

Tt4-,%-iJ-qt

Balance

July 1,2022 Additions Reductions

Balance

June 30, 2023

Due Within
One Year

Due in More

Than One Year

Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:

Direct placements

Premium
Total bonds payable

Notes payable - direct borrowings

Compensated absences

Pollution remediation liability
Net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefits

Total long-term liabilities

Business-type activities:
Bonds payable:

Direct placements

Direct borrowings
Premium

Total bonds and loans payable

Compensated absences

Net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefits

Total long-term liabilities

$ 18,325,366

1,608,509

$ ( l,614,410)
(164,718)

$ 16,710,956 $

1,443,791

1,592,786
155,094

$ t5,l l8,l70
1,288,697

s

9,052,714

$ 63.784,222

(1,779,128)
(386,e34)

(1 82,000)

(727,2r0)
$ (3,07s,272)

18,154,747

1,150,796

t,654,666
6,006,000

35,949,988
7,021,176

s 69,93',7,373 5 2,312,757

16,406,867

798,589

1,623,996
5,824,000

35,949,988
'7,021,176

$ 67,624,616

19,933,875

1,437,730
1,s78,9s7
6, l 88,000

26,897,274
7,748,386

100,000

75,709

1,74',1,880

352,207
30,670

182,000

$ 7,184,582
12,064,711

1,075,671

$

20,324,964
126,751
731,476
295,525

307,01I

$ 307,01I

(1,857,194)
(12,795)

(23, l 98)

_t_(1,8e3,182

$ (1,114,042)
(61e,166)
(123,986)

$ 6,070,540
11,445,545

951,685

$ I,l 19,709 $

620,001

4,950,83 I
t0,825,544

839,926ill 759
I,851,46918,467,770

I 13,956

1,038,487

272,327

16,616,301

I13,956
I,038,487

272,327

_fiJJ,lllJJS_

4t

$ 19,892,540 $ 1,851,469 $ 18,041,071



CITY OF SOMERSII/ORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,2023

Long-term bonds/notes are comprised of the following:

Governmental activities:
General obligation bonds:

Direct placements:

School

Downtown Improvements and School HVAC
Downtown Improvements and School HVAC
High Steet Improvements

School HVAC
School CTC

School

Middle School Elevator

Cemetery Road Bond

Fire Station

Bond premium

Total

Notes payable - direct bonowings

Vehicles (FY 20)

Peterbilt (FY 20)

Vehicles (FY 22)
Vehicles (FY 22)

Pierce Enforcer (FY 22)

Vehicles (FY23)
Total

Business-type activities:
General obligation bonds:

Direct placements:

Water Treatment Plant Upgrades

Water Treatment Plant

Downtown Improvements

High Street Improvements

Wastewater Refunding

Cemetery Road Bond

Direct borrowings:

Wastewater Treatment Facility
Wastewater Treatment Facility Upgrades

Bond premium

Total

$ 400,000

$ 410,821

$ 130,000

$ 160,000

$ 697,276

$ 100,000

2025

2024

2026

2027

2029

2026

2.39

3.84

2.49

2.69

1.64

3.83

Original

Amount

Maturity
Date

Interest

Rate%o

3.73

3. l3
5. l0
5.10

5.10

2.16

2.70

l.3l
1.32

2.34

Outstanding at

June 30.2023
Issue

Date

$ 18,953,500

s 2,155,736

$ 900,000

$ 859,500

$ 105,000

$ 1,453,92s

$ 1,640,000

$ 550,500

s r,072,334

$ 7,700,000

Original

Amount

Original

Amount

$ 4,837,898

940,125

420,000

l7l,000
20,000

855,000

1,085,000

475,000

928,333

6,978,600

2009

2014
2015

2014
2015

2016
2019

202r
2021

2022

2030

2029

2030

2025

2025

2032
2034

2036
2036

2047

Issue

Date

Maturity Interest

Date Rate %

16,710,956

1,443 .791

$ 18,154,747

Outstandingat

June30,2023

2019

2019

2021

2021

2021

2023

$ 165,680

88,470

79,910

114,276

602,460

100,000

$ 1,150,796

Issue

Date

Maturity
Date

2030

2042

Interest

Rate %

Outstanding at

$ 1,843,500

$ 3,193,000

$ 1,958,264

$ 95,500

$ 7,810,000

$ 2,144,66s

2028
2028
2029

2025

2026
2036

4.07

1.92

3. l3
5.10

2.56

3.13

2008

2016
2014
2014
2012
2021

2014
2022

June 30.2023

$ 450,000

I,580,000

694,875

19,000

I,470,000

1,856,665

218,445

11,227 . 100

17,5 I 6,085

95r 685

$ 926,468

$ 12,440,000

2.95

42

2.00

$ 18,467,770



CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,2023

The annual requirements to amortize all general obligation bonds/notes outstanding as of June 30,2023, including interest

payments, are as follows:

Governmental activities:

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30,

Bonds - Direct Placements

Principal Interest Total

$ 1,s92,786

I,569,918

1,45t,704
r,426,595

1,373,278

4,1 19,308

1,917,867

1,729,500

l,530.000 1,627.836

$ 16,710,956 $8,757.540 $ 25, 468,496

Notes - Direct Borrowings
Interest Total

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029-2033

2034-2038

2039-2043

2044-2047

Totals

Fiscal Year Ending

$ 1,034,969

1,030,240

I,026,003

1,019,767

1,03 1,684

2,644,054

561,968

311,019

97,836

s 2,627,75s

2,600,1 58

2,477,707

2,446,362

2,404,962

6,763,362
2,479,835

2,040,519

June 30- Principal

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028
2029

Totals

$

714

$ 1,150,796 $ 64,037 $ 1,214,833::

Bonds - Direct Placements

Princioal Interest Total

352,207

269,897

190,397

130,908

102,850

104,537

26,r65
16,607

10,290

5,860

3,401

378,372

286,504

200,687

136,',|68

106,251

106.251

$ $

Business-type activities

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30.

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028
2029-2033

2034-2036

Totals

$ 1,119,708

1,t29,708
1,135,209

653,083

778,083

831,417

423.332

$ 6,070,540

$ 225,354

166,625

122,356

87,389

58,578

1 33,866

21,943

$ 816,l1l

$ 1,345,062

1,296,333

1,257,565

740,472

836,66 I

965,283

445.275

$ 6,886,651

Fiscal Year Ending Bonds - Direct Borrowings

une 30.J Principal Interest Total

2024

2025

2026

202',7

2028

2029-2033

2034-2038

2039-2042
Totals

$ 620,001

620,860

621,744

622,65s

623,592

3,0 I 8,593

2,954,500

$ 230,991

218,313

205,611

192,883

r80,127

7ll,87l
413,630

118,180

$ 850,992

839,173

827,355

815,538

803,719

3,730,464

3,368, I 30

2,481,7802,363.600

$ I 1,44s,545

43

$ 2,271,606 $ 13,717,l5l



CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,2023

All debt is general obligation debt of the City, which is backed by its full faith and credit, and will be repaid from general

govemmental revenues.

pollution Remediation Obligation - On September 8, 1983, the Somersworth Sanitary Landfill was placed on the National

priority Listing Q.{pL) by tf,e Environment;l Protection Agency (EPA). The EPA concluded the City's landfill contained

fourteen contaminants that trad a principal threat to human health and the environment and were in violation of various Federal

and State drinking water acts. prom thi proposed remedial action alternatives, included in the Feasibility Study prepared by the

City and other pitentially responsible parties in 1993, the EPA selected a remedy that provides treatment of contaminate

overburden and bedrock g.ounA water with flushing of contamination from the source area. The key element of this process is

the construction of a permeable treatment wall composed of impermeable barrier sections and innovative, permeable, chemical

treatrnent sections to provide in place, flow-through treatment of contaminated ground water and the landfill waste boundary'

The ground water wili be exhactid from the bedrock downgradient of the landfill and be pumped to a monitoring well, which

will further reduce the contamination in the bedrock ground water. To accelerate flushing of the landfill, the ground water

extracted from the bedrock will be reapplied to the landfill. This process allows the ground water to clean itself in the shortest

time feasible, approximately 55 years. The estimated total cost of this alternative, in 1993 dollars, was $14,984,800.

The City reached an agreement with a potentially responsible party that all construction and subsequent monitoring costs would

be split 50.5vo and qi.Sy" between th; Ciry and the potentially responsible party, respectively. The total estimated pollution

remediation liability and the estimated recoveries from the potentially responsible party are recognized in these financial

statements.

On September 5,2005,the physical construction and the remedy was completed, and minor punch list items remained' The EPA

requires the City to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions and the landfill through September 2056' As of
June 30, 2023, the iity estimates the pollution remediation obligation to be $6,006,000 and estimated recoveries from the

potentially responsible iutry of $2,gi2,i70. The estimated obligation was calculated using the expected cash flow technique

measured at current uulu". in making the estimate, the City assumed an 80Yo likelihood current monitoring procedures would be

adequate and 20vo likelihood additional monitoring procedures would be required through 2056 and there would be no

unforeseen repairs or changes in EPA's evaluation of tlie remediation process. This estimate has the potential to change due to

factors such ai price increaies or decreases, changes in technology, or changes in applicable laws and regulations'

NOTE 12 _ DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

plan Description - The New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS or the System) is a public employee retiremenJ system that

administers one cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan (Pension Plan), a component unit of the State of

New Hampshire, as defined in Gou.-rnental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for
pension plqns - an amendment of GASB Statement No.1S. The Pension Plan was established in 1967 by RSA 100-4:2 and is

qualified as a tax-exem pt organization under Sections 401 (a) and 50 1(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Pension Plan is a

contributory, defined benefi plan providing service, disability, death and vested retirement benefits to members and their

beneficiaries. Substantialty ati futt-time state employees, public school teachers and administrators, permanent firefighters and

permanent police officers within the State are eligible and required to participate in the Pension Plan. The System issues a

publicly uuuilubl. financial report that may be obtiined by writing the New Hampshire Retirement System, 54 Regional Drive'

Concord, NH 03301.

Beneftts provided - Benefit formulas and eligibility requirements for the Pension Plan are set by state law (RSA 100-4). The

pension Plan is divided into two membership groups. State and local employees and teachers belong to Group I. Police and

firefighters belong to Group II.

Group I benefits are provided based on creditable service and average final salary for the highest of either three or five years,

depending on when service commenced.
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Group II benefits are provided based on age, years of creditable service and benefit multiplier depending on vesting status as of

lllll2. The maximum retirement allowanie for Group II members vested by 1lll12 (45 years of age with 20 years of service or

age 60 regardless of years of creditable service) is the average final compensation multiplied by 2.5% multiplied by creditable

sJrvice. For Group II members not vested by 1l1ll2 the benefit is calculated the same way, but the multiplier used in the

calculation will change depending on age and years of creditable service as follows:

Years of Creditable Service as of lllll2 Minimum Age Minimum Service Benefit Multiplier

At least 8 but less than 10 years 46 2l 2.4%

At least 6 but less than 8 years 47 22 2.3%

At least 4 but less than 6 years 48 23 2.2%

Less than 4 years 49 24 2.1%

Members of both groups may qualiff for vested deferred allowances, disability allowances and death benefit allowances, subject

to meeting various eligibilify requirements. Benefits are based on AFC or earnable compensation and/or service

Contributions - The System is financed by contributions from both the employees and the City. Member conhibution rates are

established and may bi amended by the Siate legislature while employer conffibution rates are set by the System trustees based

on an actuarial valuation. Group i members are required to contribute 7oh of eamable compensation and group II members

(police and fire) are required to contribute 11.55% and 11.80% respectively. For fiscal year2023, the City contributed 30.67Vo

ior police, 2g3gyo foi nre and l3J5Yo for other employees. The contribution requirement for the fiscal year 2023 was

83,808,747, which was Paid in full.

pension Lisbitities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resoarces.Related to
pensions - At June 30,2023 the-City reported a liability of $36,988,475 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.

The net pension liability *u5, -"ur*.d as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension

liability was determinrd by un actuarial valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on

a projection of the Ciry,; long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all

participating gou"--.ntul eniities, actuarially determined. At June 30,2022, the City's proportion was0.64Yo which was an

increase of 0.02%o from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021 .

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $3,948,488. At June 30,2023 the Cify reported

defened outflows of resources and defened inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Defened

Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

$ 142,049Changes in proportion

Changes in assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual investment

eamings on pension plan investments

Differences between expected and actual experience

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Total

$ I,259,805
1,96'7,492

1,401,816

694,208

3,808,747-T-sFp6d-
14t,993

s 284,042
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The $3,808,747 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from the City contributions subsequent to

the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,2024- Other

amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in

pension expense as follows: 
Fiscal year Ending

June 30,

$ 1,649,823

1,593,71 8

(326,964)

2,122,702

2023
2024
2025
2026

Thereafter
Totals $ 5,039,279

Actusrial Assumptions - The collective total pension liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation as of

June 30, 2021 , using the following actuarial assumptions which, accordingly, apply to 2022 measutements:

Inflation: 2.0%

Salary increases: 5.4Yo average, including inflation

Wage inflation: 2.75% (2.25% for teachers)

Investment rate of return : 6.7 5o/o net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Health Retiree Mortality Tables with credibility adjustments for each group (Police

and Fire combined) and projected fully generational mortalify improvements using Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2021, valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience

study, which was for the period July l, 2015 - June 30, 2019.

Long-term Rates of Retarn - The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investment was selected from a best

estiriate range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected future real retum range is

calculated se-parately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by

weighting the expeited future real rate of retum net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by

adding eipected inflation. Following is a table presenting target allocations and long-term rates of retum for 2022:

Target

Asset Class Allocation 30 Year Geometric Retum

Broad US Equity (l)
Global Ex-US Equity (2)

Total public equity

Real Estate Equity

Private Equity

Total private market equity

Private Debt

Core U.S. Fixed Income (3)

lnflation

Total

30.00%

20.00%

50.00%

10.00%

10.00%

20.00o/o

5.00o/o

25.00o/o

0.00%

100.00%

7.600/o

7.90o/o

6.60Yo

8.850

7.250h

3.60010

2.25o/o

7.30o/o
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Discount Rate -The discount rate used to measure the collective total pension liability was 6.7SYo. The projection of cash flows

used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that

employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the

memblr rate. For purposes of the projection, member contributions and employer service cost contributions are projected based

on the expecteO payroit of current members only. Employer contributions are determined based on the Pension Plan's actuarial

funding iolicy is required by RSA 100-4:16. Based on those assumptions, the Pension Plan's fiduciary net position was

prolecf,a'to be availible to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term

expected rate of return on Pension Plan investment was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the

collective total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabitity to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following

table presenis the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.75Yo as well as

what ihe City's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-

percentage point lower (5.75%) or l-percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

Cunent Single

Rate Assumption
6.75Vo

1une30,2022 $ 49,629,209 $ 36,988,475 s 26,208,876

pension plun Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary rrct position is available in the

separately issued New Hampshire Retirement System Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan financial

report.

Reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements:

Deferred Net Defened

Outflows of Pension Inflows of
Resources Liability Resources

Actuarial

Valuation
Date

I o/o Decrease

5.7sYo

l%o Increase

7.',|50/o

Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total

$ 8,881,130
250,938

$ 35,949,988
1,038,487

$ 278,069
5.973

$ 9,r32,068 $ 36,988,47L $ 284,042

NOTE 13 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

l3-A New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS)

plan Description - The New Hampshire Retirement System (NHRS or the System) administers a cost-sharing multiple-

employer other postemployment benefit plan medical subsidy healthcare plan (OPEB Plan). For additional system information,

please-refer to tie 20Zi Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which can be found on the system's website at www.nhrs.org.

Benejlts provided - Beneftt amounts and eligibility requirements for the OPEB Plan are set by state law (RSA 100-4:52, RSA

100-A:52-a and RSA tOO-,4,:SZ-b;, and members are designated in statute by type. The four membership types are Group II,
police Officers, and Firefighters; Group I, Teachers; Group I, Political Subdivision Employees; and Group I, State Employees.

The OpEB plan provides a medical insurance subsidy to qualified retired members. The medical insurance subsidy is a payment

made by NHRS io the former employer or its insurance administrator toward the cost of health insurance for a qualified retiree'

his/her qualified spouse, and hislirei certified dependent children with a disability who are living in the household and being

cared foi by the retiree. If the health insurance piemium amount is less than the medical subsidy amount, then only the health

insurance premium amount will be paid. If the health insurance premium amount exceeds the medical subsidy amount, then the

retiree or other qualified person is responsible for paying any portion that the employer does not pay.

Group I benefits are based on creditable service, age, and retirement date. Group II benefits are based on hire date, age, and

creditable service. The OPEB plan is closed to new entrants.

47



CITY OF SOMERSTTORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JaNE 30,2023

Maximum medical subsidy rates paid during fiscal year 2023 were as follows:

For qualified retirees not eligible for Medicare, the amounts were $375.56 for a single-person plan and $75 l.l2 for a

two-person plan.

For those qualified retirees eligible for Medicare, the amounts were $236.84 for a single-person plan and $473.68 for a

two-person plan.

Contributions - The OPEB Plan is funded by allocating to the 401(h) subtrust the lessor of: 25Yo of all employer contributions

made in accordance with RSA 100-4:16 or the percentage of employer contributions determined by the actuary to be the

minimum rate necessary to maintain the benefits provided under RSA 100-A:53-b, RSA 100-A:53-c, and RSA 100-A:53-d. For

fiscal year 2022, the -ini-u- rates determined by the actuary to maintain benefits were the lesser of the two options and were

used tb determine the employer contributions due to the 401(h) subtrust. The State Legislature has the authority to establish,

amend and discontinue the contribution requirements of the OPEB Plan. Administrative costs are allocated to the OPEB Plan

based on fund balances. For fiscal year2023, the City contributed 3.21o/ofor police and fire, and 0.31ohfor other employees.

The contribution requirement for the fiscal year 2023 was $271,840, which was paid in full.

O4EB Liabitities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred OutJlows of Resoarces Reluted to OPEB - At June 30, 2023, the City

reported a liability of $2,409,9q0 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as

of Jun" 30,2022, and, the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation

as of June 30,2021. The City's proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of
contributions to the OPEB ptan relative to the projected contributions of all participating govemmental entities, actuarially

determined. At June 30,202r, the City's proportion was 0.64oh which was an increase of 0.03% from its proportion measured as

ofJune 30,2021.

For the year ended June 30, 2023,the City recognized OPEB expense of $257,958. At June 30,2023, the City reported deferred

outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Net difference between projected and actual investment

eamings on OPEB plan investments

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Total

$ 6,586

271 840

278,426

The $271,840 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB results from the City conhibutions subsequent to the

measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30,2024. Other amounts

reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30,

2023 $ 1,095

2024 284

202s (2,591)

2026 7,798

Thereafter
Totals T-",-Sd-
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Actusriul Assumptions - The total OPEB liability in this report is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30,2021 ,

and a measurement date of June 30, 2022. The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions

applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Price inflation: 2.0%o Per Year
Wage inflation: 2.75% (2.25% for teachers)

Salary increases: 5.4Yo average, including inflation
Investment rate of return : 6.7 5o/o net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation
Health care trend rate: Not applicable, given that the benefits are fixed stipends

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Health Retiree Mortality Tables with credibility adjustments for each group (Police

and Fire combined) and projected fully generational mortality improvements using Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2021, valuation were based on the results of the most recent actuarial experience

study, which was for the period July l, 2015 - June 30, 2019.

Long-term Rates of Return - The long-term expected rate of retum on OPEB plan investment was selected from a best estimate

rungi d"t.r.ined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected future real return range is calculated

sepirately for each urrit rlurt. Theie ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the

expectedfuture real rate ofreturn net ofinvestment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected

inflation. Following is a table presenting target allocations and long-term rates of retum for 2022:

Target

Asset Class Allocation 30 Year Geometric Retum

Broad US Equity (l)
Global Ex-US Equity (2)

Total public equity

Real Estate Equity

Private Equity

Total private market equity

Private Debt

Core U.S. Fixed Income (3)

Inflation

Total

Actuarial

Valuation
Date

30.00o/o

20.00o/o

50.00%

10.00%

10.00%

20.00o/o

5.00Yo

25.jOVo

0.00Yo

100.00%

7.600/o

7.90Vo

6.600/o

8.85%

7.25o/o

3.600/o

2.25o/o

'7 -30o/"

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability as of June 30,2022, was 6.75%o. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made under the current statute RSA

100-A:16 and that plan member contributions will be made under RSA 100-A:16. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB Plan's

fiduciary net position was projected to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-

term exiected rate of retu* on OpBg Plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the

collective total OPEB liability.

Sensitivily of the City,s Proportionate Share of the OPEB Liubitity to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following table

presents ihr City" proportionate share of the OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.75% as well as what the

bity's proportionate shire of the OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage point

lower (5.75o/o) or l-percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

Cunent Single
Rate Assumption

6.75Yo

$ 1,061,646 $ 982,434

17o Decrease

5.7 5o/o

l%o Increase

7.75o/o

1une30,2022 5 1,152,597
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CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,2023

OqEB plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is available in the

separately issued New Hampshire Retirement System Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit OPEB Plan financial

report.

l3-B City of Somersworth Retiree Health BeneJit Program

plan Description - GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Postemployment Benefits Other Than

pensions, requires governments to account for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) on an accrual basis, rather than on a pay-

as-you-go Uasis. ffre effect is the recognition of an actuarially determined expense on the Statement of Activities when a future

retiree Jarns their postemployment benefits, rather than when they use their postemployment benefit. The postemployment

benefit liability is recognized on the Statement of Net Position over time.

BeneJits provided - The City provides postemployment healthcare benefits for certain eligible retirees. The City provides

medical benefits to its eligible retirees.

Emptoyees Covered by BeneJit Terms - At July 7, 2021, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments

Active employees
Total participants covered by OPEB plan

OPEB liability beginning of year

Changes for the year:

Service cost

Interest
Assumption changes and difference between

actual and expected experience

Change in actuarial cost method

Benefit payments

OPEB liability end of year

$ 6,022,847

(407,558)

40

148

188

-Total OnEB Liabiliry - The City's total OPEB liability of $4,808,523 was measured as of July 1,2021, and was determined by

an actuarial valuation ofthat date.

Actuarisl Assumptions ond Other Inputs - The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions

and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Discount Rate: 3'69%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates:

Cunent Year Trend 7.50o/o

Second Year Trend 7.35%

Decrement 0.15Yo

Ultimate Trend 4-50%

Year Ultimate Trend is Reached 2043

Salary Increases: 0.00%

The discount rate was based on the index provided by Bond Buyer 2}-Bond Generql Obligation Indexbased on the 2O-year AA

municipal bond rate as of June 30,2023.

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Teachers mortality table projected generationally with Scale

Mp-2021 for teachers, pub-20 l0 Public Retirement Plans Safety mortality table projected generationally with Scale MP-2021 for

firefighters and police officers and Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans General mortality table projected generationally with Scale

MP -2021 for other participants.

Changes in the Total oPEB Liability
June 30,

2022 2023

I 88,585

t32,769

(480,400)

152,834

$ s,609,077

155,867

121,583

(805,742)

(272,262)

50
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CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JaNE 30,2023

Sensifivity of the Ciry,s OnEB Liability to Changes in the Discoant Rste - The July 1,2021, actuarial valuation was prepared

using a disc-ount rate of 3.69%. If the discount rate were l% higher than what was used the OPEB liability would decrease to

S4Ja4,g66 or by 9.85%. If the discount rate were 1%o lower than what was used the OPEB liability would increase to

$5,373,500 or by I l.7sYo.
Discount Rate

lolo Decrease

Total OPEB Liability Tffi6T-
Baseline 3.69%-T--4;808-F lolo Increase

@
Sensitiviry of the Ciqt's OPEB Liubitity to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The July l, 2021, actuarial valuation

*u, p..pur.d using in initial trend rate of 7.50oh. If the trend rate were lo/ohigher than what was used the OPEB liability would

increase to $5,238,386 orby 8.94Yo. If the trend rate were 17o lower than what was used the OPEB liability would decrease to

s4'436'477 orby 7 '74Yo' 
Healthcare cost Trend Rates

lolo Decrease Baseline 7.50%o l%o Increase

Total oPEB Liability $ 4,436,477 $ 4,808,523 $ 5,238,386

O4EB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Retated to OPEB - For the year ended

June 30, )OZ3,th" City recognized OPEB expense of $741,202. At June 30,2023, the City reported defened outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Changes in assumptions

Differences between expected and actual experience

Total

$ 50,944

$ 50,944 $ 1,922,382

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in

OPEB expense as follows' 
oiscal year Ending

June 30,

s I,166,01 I
756,371

2024
2025

Totals

s (1,2e2,018)

(s79,420)
$ (1,871,438)

Reconciliation of Note l3-A and Note 13-B to the govemment-wide financial statements

Deferred

Outflows of
Resources

OPEB
Liability

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Govemmental activities

Business-type activities
Total

$ 3 18,675

10,695

s 7,021,176
272.327

$ 1,843,509

78,873

_$J22p9_ $ 7.293,503 _$1,2223u_
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CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JANE 30,2023

NOTE 14 _ STATE AID TO WATER POLLUTION PROJECTS

Under New Hampshire RSA Chapter 486, the City receives from the State of New Hampshire a percentage of the annual

amortization charges on the original costs resulting from wastewater infrastructure improvements. At June 30,2023 the City is

due to receive the following annual amounts to offset debt payments:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Total

2024
2025
2026
Total

))7
))7

$ 87

87

122,387 4,269 126,656T36fi-ww

Interest

J rz-so?
8,538

$ 135,194

130,925

NOTE 15 _ COMMITMENTS

The City has active construction projects as of June 30,2023. At year-end, the City commitments with contractors for specific

projects are as follows:

Capital Proiect Program Spent to Date

Remaining
Commitment

Fire Station
Cemetery Road Reconstruction

Total Construction Commitments

$ 7,578,291
3,275,510

$

$ 10,853,801 s 924,448

7,272

9,512

697,178
73

509,868

553,179
371,269

NOTE 16. ENCUMBRANCES

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and contracts that remain

unperformed at June 30,2023 are as follows:

General fund:

General govemment

Public safety

Highways and streets

Culture and recreation

Capital outlay

Total encumbrances s 1,223,903

NOTE 17 _ GOVERNMENTAL AND.BU,SINES,S-TYPE ACTIVITIES AND FIDUCIARY FANDS NET
POSITION

Governmental and business-type activities and fiduciary fund net position reported on the Statements of Net Position at June 30,

2023 include the following:

Govemment-wide Financial Statements

$

Governmental
Activities

Business-type

Activities Total
Fiduciary

Funds

Net investment in capital assets:

Net book value, all capital assets

Less:

General obligation bonds/notes payable

Unamortized bond premiums

Notes payable

Retainage payable

Total net investment in capital assets

$ 60,498,917 $

(16,710,956)
(1,443,79t)
(t,rs0,796)

$ 89,760,839 $29,261,922

(17,5 16,085)

(e5l,685)

(2, l 50)

(34,227,041)
(2,395,476)
(r,1s0,796)

(2, l s0)

41,193,374

52

10,792.002 51,985,376
(Continued)



CITY OF SOMERSITORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,2023

Governmental and business-type activities andfiduciary funds net position continued:

Government-wide Financial Statements

Governmental
Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

Fiduciary
Funds

Restricted net position:

Perpetual care - nonexpendable

Perpetual care - expendable

SB 38 highway block grant

Food service

Police forfeiture

School grants

City grants

City capital projects

Other
Total restricted net position

Unrestricted
Total net position

(28,461,333)
$ 1s,093,139

172,807

25,894
709,249
435,578

13,285

31,229
I 83,800
789,256

172,807

25,894

709,249
435,578
t3,285
31,229

183,800

789,256

2,361,098 2,361,098

1,137,582
1,137,582

$ 1,137,582

Total

Govemmental
Funds

1r,497,016 (16,964,317)@w
NOTE 18 _ GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

Governmental fund balances reported on the fund financial statements at June 30,2023 include the following:

City
Capital
Proiects

Fund

Nonspendable:
Prepaid items

Permanent fund - principal balance

Total nonspendable fund balance

Restricted:
School grants

City capital projects

SB 38 Highway block grant

City grants

Police forfeiture

Food service

Permanent - income balance

Total restricted fund balance

Committed:
Expendable trust

Conservation
Cable communications

City other special revenue funds

School other special revenue funds

Transportation improvement trust

Other trusts

Total committed fund balance

$ 59,498 $ $

59,498

172,807

172,807

31,229
789,256

31,229 789,256

709,249
183,800

13,285

435,578
25,894

1,367,806

213,144
254,776
140,852
29,768

36,600
85,345
79,009

General

Fund

School
Grants

Fumd

Nonmajor
Funds

$ $ 59,498
172.807

232.305

31,229

789,256
709,249
I 83,800

13,285

435,578

213,r44
254,776

t40,&52
29,768
36,600
85,345

19.009
839,494213,144

53

626,350
(Continued)



CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JaNE 30,2023

G overnmental fund balancces continued:

Assigned:
Encumbrances

Student activity funds

Total assigned fund balance

Unassigned
Total govemmental fund balances

General

Fund

School
Grants

Fumd

City
Capital
Projects

Fund

Nonmajor
Funds

Total

Governmental

Funds

NOTE 19 - PMOR PEKIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Net position/fund balance at July 1,2022, was restated to give retroactive effect to the following prior period adjustments:

Government-wide General School

Statements Fund Grants

$ 553,716 $

9, 039,766

(2)

37,939

$ 9,593,482 s 37,937

NOTE 20 _ RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; enors or omissions;

injuries io empioyees; or natural disasters. During fiscal year 2023, the City was a member of the New Hampshire Public Risk

Management Exchange (Primex3) Workers' Compensation and Property/Liability Programs.

The New Hampshire public Risk Management Exchange (Primex3) Workers' Compensation and PropertylLiability Programs are

pooled risk management programs under RSAs 5-B and 281-A. Coverage was provided from July 1,2022 to June 30,2023 by
'p.i*"*r, 

which rJtained $z,ooo,ooo of each workers' compensation loss, $500,000 of each liability loss, and for each property

loss it is based upon the City's property schedule on file with Primex3. The Board has decided to self-insure the aggregate

exposure and has allocated funds baied on actuarial analysis for that purpose. The workers' compensation section of the self-

insurance membership agreement permits Primex3 to make additional assessments to members should there be a deficiency in

contributions for any member year, not to exceed the member's annual contribution. GASB Statement No. l0 requires members

of a pool with a sharing risk to disclose if such an assessment is probable, and a reasonable estimate of the amount, if any' In
fiscai year 2022-23 the City paid $341,973 and $304,245 respectively, to Primex for property, liability, and worker's

compensation. At this time, Primex3 foresees no likelihood of any additional assessment for this or any prior year.

The City continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not

exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any ofthe past three fiscal years.

NOTE 21_ TAXABATEMENTS

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 77 defines tax abatements as a reduction in tax revenues that results

from an agreement between one or more governments and an individual or entity in which (a) one or more govemments promise

to forgo tix revenues to which they are otherwise entitled and (b) the individual or entity promises to take a specific action after

the ag-reement has been entered into that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the governments or the

citizens of those governments.

The City had no such tax abatement programs as of June 30,2023'

1,223,903

1,223,903

9,574,005

$ 11,070,550 s 31,229

To restate for initial measurement of lessor

lease receivables applicable to GASB #87 (see Note I -O)

Miscellaneous rounding difference

Fund balance/net position, as previously reported

Fund balance/net position, as restated

91,3 1 1

91,31I

1,223,903

91,31 I
1,3 15,214
9,574,005

$ 789,2s6 $ 2,258,274 $ 14,149,309

$ 5s3,716
(2)

9,611,220

$ 10,164,934
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CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,2023

NOTE 22 _ CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Cify participates in various federal grant programs, the principal of which are subject to program compliance audits pursuant

to the Single AuOit act as amended. Accoidingly, the government's compliance with applicable grant requirements will be

established at a future date. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be

determined at this time, although the government anticipates such amounts, if any, will be immaterial'

NOTE X _ SABSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but before the financial statements are

issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provided additional evidence about conditions that existed

at the balance sheet date, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. Nonrecognized

subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the balance sheet date but arose after the

date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 1, 2024, the date the June 30, 2023 financial statements were

available to be issued, and no events occurred that require recognition or disclosure.
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EXHIBIT G

CITYOF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
New Hampshire Retirement System Cost Sharing Muhiple Employer Defined Benefit Plan

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
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Fiscal year-end

Measurement date

City's proportion of the

net pension liability

City's proportionate share of
the net pension liability

City's covered payroll
(as ofthe measurement date)

City's proportionate share

ofthe net pension liability
as a percentage of
its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position

as a percentage ofthe
total pension liability

June 30" June 30,

2014 20t5

June 30, June 30,

2013 2014

June 30,

2016

June 30,

2015

0.63%

g 25,120,120

June 30,

2017

June 30,

2016

0.64%

$ 34,181,336

June 30,

201 8

June 30,

2017

0.62%

$ 30,683,127

June 30,

2019

June 30,

2018

0.63%

$ 30,111,197

June 30,

2020

June 30,

2019

0.61%

$ 29,477,219

June 30,

2021

June 30,

2020

June 30,

2022
June 30,

2023

June 30, June 30,

2021 2022

0.610/o 0.62% 0.64%

s 39,140,944 $ 27,628,7s0 $ 36,988,47s

O.63V. 0 64%

$ 27,1rs,078 s 24,002"2s8

$15,319,843 $1s,764,272 $16,2t8,949 $16,s68,181 $16,535,231 $16,767,460 $16"802,057 $1'1,178,692 $17,969,590 $19,340,2s8

176.99% 152.26Yr 1s4.88% 206.31% 185.56Yo 179.58% 175.44V. 227.85Vo 153.75% t91.25%

s9.81% 66.3204 65.47% 58.30% 62.66% 64.'t3% 6s s9% 58.'72% 'r2.22% 65.12%



EXHIBIT H
CITY OF SOMERSIYORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of City Contributions - Pensions

New Hampshire Rdirement Systan Cost Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Benefit Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 202i

Unaudited
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Fiscal year-end

Measurement date

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the

contractually required conaibutions

Contribution defi ciency (excess)

City's covered payoll
(as ofthe fiscal year end)

Contributions as a percentage

ofcovered payroll

$ 2,127,337 $ 2,301,721

June 30,

2015

June 30,

2014

June 30,

2016

June 30,

2015

June 30,

20t7

June 30,

20t6

June 30,

2018

June 30,

2017

June 30,

2019

June 30,

2018

June 30,

2020

June 30,

2019

June 30,

2021

June 30,

2020

June 30,

2022

June 30,

2021

June 30,

2023

June 30,

2022

s 2.28s.s99 $ 2,643,031 S 2,66s,744 $ 2,666,015 $ 2,718,518 S 3,733,66s $ 3,808,747

o.30r-721\ Q.285.599\ Q.643.031\ Q.665.7M\ (2.666,01s\

$ $ $ $

$ 16"802,057

(2.127.337) (2-718.s18) G"733.665\ (3.808.747)

$ $

$ r6,568,181 $ 16,s3s.231 $ 16,767,460 $ 17,178,692 $ 17,969,590

$ $ $

$ 16,218,949 _!__l e,340,2s!_ _a__1 e,?0e,283_

13.12% 13.89% 13.82Yo 15.76Vo 15.87o/o 15.52o/o 15.13% 19.31o/o t9.32%



CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTE TO THE REQAIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION _

PENSION LIABILITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,2023

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and
Schedule of City Contributions - Pensions

Changes in Benefit Terms - There were no changes in benefit terms for the current period.

Changes in Assumptiorzs - There were no changes in assumptions for the current period.

Methods and Assumptions (Jsed to Determine Contrihution Rates - A full list of the methods and assumptions used to

determine the contribution rates can be found in the most recent actuarial valuation report. This report can be located at

www.nhrs.org.

As required by GASB Statement No. 68, and as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Exhibits G and H represent the actuarial

determined costs associated with the City's pension plan at June 30, 2023. These schedules are presented to illustrate the

requirement to show information for l0 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those

years for which information is available.
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EXHIBIT I
CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEIY HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment Beneftts Liabili$
New Hampshire Retirement System Cost Sharing Multiple Employer Delined Benefit Plan

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
Unaudited

Fiscal year-end

Measurement date

City's proportion of the net OPEB liability

City's proportionate share of the net OPEB

liability (asset)

City's covered payroll (as of the measurement date)

City's proportionate share of the net OPEB

liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe total

OPEB liability

June 30,

20t7

June 30,

2016

0.610/o

$ 2,968,420

$ 16,568,181

June 30,
2018

June 30,
2017

0.600/o

$ 2,733,417

$ 16,535,231

June 30,

20t9

June 30,

201 8

0.59%

$ 2,'722,472

$ 16,767,460

June 30,

2020

June 30,

2019

0.59o/o

s 2,576,768

$ 16,802,057

June 30,

2021

June 30,

2020

0.59o/o

s 2,59r,842

s t7,t78,692

June 30,

2022

June 30,

2021

0.610/o

s 2,434,834

$ 17,969,590

13.55o/o

11.060/o

June 30,

2023

June 30,

2022

0.640/o

s 2,409,940

$ r9,340,258

72.460/o

70.640/o

17.92o/o

5.21o

76.53o/o 16.24V"

7.91Y" 7.53%

15.34o/o

7.75o/o

15.09Yo

7.74%o
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EXHIBIT J
CITY OF SOMERSIYORTH, NEIY HAMPSHIRE

Schedule of City Contibations - (hher Postemploymenl BeneJits

New Hampshire Retirement System Cost Sharing Multiple Employer Defined BeneJit Plan

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Unaudited

Fiscal year-end June 30,

2017

June 30,

2016

June 30,

2018

June 30,

2017

June 30,

2019

June 30,

2018

June 30,

2020

June 30,

2019

June 30,

2021

June 30,

2020

June 30,

2022

June 30,

2021

June 30,

2023

June 30,

2022
Measurement date

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution

Contribution defi ciency (excess)

City's covered payroll (as ofthe fiscal year end)

Contributions as a percentage ofcovered payoll

g 354,326 5 263,021 $ 268,20r S 268,226 S 292,t42 S 268,579 S 271,402

(354,326') (263,02r) (268,201) (268,226) (292,142) Q68.s79\ (271.402\

$ $ $ $ $

$ 16.535.231 $ 16.767.460 $ 16,802"057 $ 17,178.692 $ 17,969,590 $ 19,340,258 _{_le,?0e,283_

1.38%2.14o/o l.57Yo 1.600/o 1.560/o 1.63% 1.39o/o

$ $

o\



$ 5,609,077

s 18,840,822

29.77Yo
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C IrY O F S O M E R:|'T::;;,I U*'O * "'' *'Schedule of Changes in the City's Total Other Posten ployment Beneftts Liability and Related Ratios

Retiree Health BeneJit Program

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023
Unaudited

June 30,

5 12,522,983 S 7,346,40s $ 7,312,8n $ s,2r6,200 $ 6,022,847 $ 5,609,077OPEB liability, beginning of year

Changes for the year:

Service cost

Interest

Assumption changes and difference between

actual and expected experience

Change in actuarial cost method

Benefit payments

OPEB liability, end of year

Covered palroll

Total OPEB liability as a percentage

ofcovered payroll

$ 7,346,40s $ 7,312,811

s 16,069,210 $ 16,796,116

45.72Yo 43.54o/o

$ 5,216,200 $ 6,022,847

s 17,929,114 S t7,3r2,549

29.09o/" 34.79Yo

437,287

337,275

(2,97s,310)
(2,82r,0r2)

fl54.818)

273,43r
233,514

(221,807_)

(3t8,732)

254,999
285,467

(2,531,414)

277,120
(382"783\

t36,496
181,543

820,090
(33 1.482)

1 88,585

132,769

(480,400)

152,834
(407,558)

ts5,867
121,583

(80s,7+2)

(272,262)

$ 4.808.523

s 20,248,742

23.75Yo



CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTE TO THE REQTIIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION _

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT LIABILITY

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30,2023

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of Net Other Postemployment BeneJits Liability and

Schedule of City Contributions - Other Postemployment BeneJits

Changes in Benejit Terms - There were no changes in benefit terms for the current period.

Changes in Assumptions - There were no changes in assumptions for the current period.

Methods and Assumptions [Jsed to Determine Contribulion Rates - A full list of the methods and assumptions used to

determine the contribution rates can be found in the most recent actuarial valuation report. This report can be located at

www.nhrs.org.

As required by GASB Statement No. 75, Exhibits I and J represent the actuarial determined costs associated with the City's other

postemployment benefits at June 30,2023. These schedules are presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for

i0 y"u.r. However, until a full l0-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is

available.

Schedule of Changes in City's Total Other Postemployment Benelits Liability and Related Rotios

Changes in Benefit Terms - There were no changes in benefit terms for the current period.

Changes in Assumptions - There were no changes in assumptions for the current period.

As required by GASB Statement No. 75, Exhibit K represents the actuarial determined costs associated with the City's other

postemployment benefits at June 30, 2023. The schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10

years. 
'However, 

until a full l0-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is

available.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES



SCHEDALE 1

CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Major General Fund

Schedule of Estimated and Actual Revenues (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Estimated Actual

Variance
Positive

(Negative

Taxes:

Property

Yield
Other

Payment in lieu of taxes

Interest and penalties on taxes

Total from taxes

Licenses, permits, and fees:

Business licenses, permits, and fees

Motor vehicle permit fees

Building permits

Total from licenses, permits, and fees

Intergovernmental:
State:

Meals and rooms distribution
Highway block grant

Education related

Other
Federal:

Other
Total from intergovemmental

Charges for services:

Income from departments

Miscellaneous:
Sale of municipal property

Interest on investments

Other

Total from miscellaneous

Other financing sources:

Transfers in

Total revenues and other financing sources

Unassigned fund balance used to reduce tax rate

Total revenues, other financing sources, and use offund balance

28,900,031 28,982,183

$ 28,679,306

60,725

160,000

s 28,661,192

2,480

4,438

157,773

156,300

(18,114)

2,480

4,438
97,048

(3,700)

$

82,152

I10,000
1,895,000

000

160,632

2,025,731
242,461

50,632

130,731

152.461

2,428,824 333.824

1,046,275

230,962

8,978,642
118,241

1,046,275

230,933

9,166,246
t18,24l

(2e)

t87,604

503,482 630,499 127,017

10,877,602 11, 192,194 314,592

583,285 600,276 16,99t

25,000
200,000

538.766

21,038
884,037

654,110

(3,962)
684,037

115,344

763,766 1,5 59.185 795,419

174.4t0

43,394,094

1,300,000

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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SCHEDULE 2

CITY OF SOMERSIYORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Major General Fand

Schedule of Appropriations, Expenditures, and Encumbrances (Non'GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Encumbered
from Prior

Year Appropriations Expenditures

Encumbered

to Subsequent

Year

Variance

Positive
(Negative)

Cunent:
General government:

Executive
Election and registration

Financial administration
Revaluation of property

Planning and zoning

General government buildings

Cemeteries

Other
Total general government

Public safety:

Police
Fire
Building inspection

Total public safety

Highways and streets:

Administration
Highways and streets

Street lighting
Other

Total highways and streets

Sanitation:
Solid waste collection

Health:
Health agencies

Welfare:
Administration and direct assistance

Culture and recreation:

Parks and recreation

Library
Patriotic purposes

Other
Total culture and recreation

Economic development

Debt service:

Principal of long-term debt

Interest on long-term debt

Other
Total debt service

Education

43,134 7,257,112

$$ s s60,962
193,182

717,998
17l,22l
323,273

184,870

8,770

75,000
2,235,276

$ 558,249
186,793
743,959
t79,512
3t'1,430
181,947

2,771

41,650

3,000

2,713
6,389

(28,e61)
(8,2e1)

4,928
(434)

5,999
33,350

$

9r5
3,357

2,212,311 1 )1) 15,693

43,134 4,444,286
2,585,058

227,768

4,273,816
2,488,97r

l8t.4l7

9,512

9,51

204,092
96,087

46,351

346,530

585,194

4,545

589,739 3,152,481 2,987,683 697,1',78

1,554,451

1,333,550

99,200
165,280

1,478,092
t,270,129

77,235
162,227

690,503
4,1 80

2,495

76,359
(41,888)

t7,785
5,1 03

57.359

253.988 257,319 (3.33 l )

176.995 176,99s

243.170 147,918 95,252

t5265

199,858

302,903
800

12,750

t63,748
283,978

t2,022

36,1 l0
t9,ll7

800

728

265 516,311 459,748 IJ 56,755

6,795 846 5.949

- 1,614,409
- 1,037,355

- 

43t,to4
? 082,868 3,064,191

1,593,693
1,039,394

43t,104

20,716
(2,03e)

18.677

)1 022.046 26,715,890 306, 1 56

351,295 608,35 I 27,095

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Capital outlay 422,683 509.868
(Continued)



SCHEDaLE 2 (Continued)

CITY OF SOMERSIYORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Major General Fund

Schedule of Appropriations, Expenditures, and Encumbrances (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Encumbered

from Prior
Year Expenditures

Encumbered

to Subsequent

Year

Variance
Positive

(Negative)

Other financing uses

Transfers out

Total appropriations, expenditures,

other financing uses, and encumbrances $ 984,433 $ 44,694,094 $ 43,524,3t2 $ t,223,903 $ 930,312

Appropriations

138.701 134,524 4,177

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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SCHEDALE 3
CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Maior General Fund
Schedule ofChanges in Unassigned Fund Balance

For lhe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Unassigned fund balance, beginning (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Changes:

Unassigned fund balance used to reduce 2022-2023 tax rate

2022-23 Budget summary:

Revenue surplus (Schedule 1)

Unexpended balance of appropriations (Schedule 2)

2022-23 Budget surplus

Increase in nonspendable fund balance

Unassigned fund balance, ending (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

Reconciliation on Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis to GAAP Basis

To record deferred property taxes not collected within 60 days ofthe
fiscal year-end, not recognized on a budgetary basis

Consolidation of blended pollution remediation fund deficit fund balance

To record lease receivables and defened inflows ofresources, not

recognized on a budgetary basis

Unassigned fund balance, ending, GAAP basis (Exhibit C-l)

s 1,543,770

930,312

$ 8,469,557

(1,300,000)

2,474,082

9,606,957

(574,247)

(e,847)

551,142

$ 9,574,005

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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SCHEDULE 4

CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEIY HAMPSHIRE
Nonmaj or Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2023

Special Revenue Funds

SB 38 Highway

BlockGrant Conservation

$ 70e,249 $

$ 709,249

$

Cable

Communications

City Other

Special Revenue

Funds
City

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Taxes receivable

Accounts receivable

Intergovernmental receivable

Interfund receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued salaries and benefits payable

Contract payable

Interfund payable

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue - student balances

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted

Committed
Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
ofresources, and fund balances

Grants

$ $ I 14,399 $

194,'.t76

60,000
27,107

808, l 56

$ 254,776 $ 808,156 $ 141,506

$ 53,208 $

9,128
33,925

$

$$

43,053

597

57

553,830
17,318

624,356 654

709,249 183,800

140,852

13,285
29,768254,7't6

709,249 254.776 183,800 I 40,852 43.053

s 709,249 $ 254,776 $ 808,156 $ 141,506 $ 43,053



Other

Special Revenue

Funds

Food
Service

Revenue Funds

Transportation
Improvement

Trust

Student

Activity
Funds

School

Capital
Projects

Permanent

Fund
Other
Trusts Total

$ 36,773 $ 441,397 $

2,500
118,223

$ 1,274 $ 91,31 I $

77,735
3,838

75,387

$ 3,205

195,496
s 1,410,574

577,319
60,000
29,607

926,379
6,1206.120

$ 39,273 $ 559,620 $ 85,345

$ 2,673 $ 103,992 $

$ 79,009 $ 91,31I $ $ 198,701 $ 3,009,999

$ $$$ $ 160,470

57

553,830

17,3 I 8

2,673 103,992 731,675

20,050 20,050

43s,578

172,807

25,894

36,600 85,345 79,009

36,600 435,578

91,3il
- 198,701 2,25 8.27485,345 79,009 91,31I

$ 39,273 $ sse,620 $ 85,345 $79,009 $ 91,311 $ $198'701

-

$ 3,009,999

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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172,80',7
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SCHEDULE 5

CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
No n mai or G ovet nme ntal Fu n ds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Special Revenue Funds

REVENUES
Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Cunent:

General government

Public safety

Highways and streets

Culture and recreation

Conservation

Education

Food service

Debt service:

Principal
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

SB 38 Highway
BlockGrant Conservation

$ $ 60,000 $

687,238

City Cable

Communications

City Other

Special Revenue

FundsGrants

$ $

7,398

1,232,374

27,822

112,832
25,645

687.238 67,398 196 |2,832 25,645

12,545

338,222

t,097,337

10,879 40,590

13,339

19,670

64

I,553

5,784 62,469

1,553 t,464,767 103, 123 33,009

687,238 65.845 (204,571) 9,709 (7.364\

73,760

s 254,776

687,238

22,011

65,845

188,93 I

73,760

(130,81 l)
3t4,6llT ts-fr'o

9,709

13t,r43
$ 140,852

('t,364)

50,417

$ 43,053



Snecial Revenue Funds

School Other

Special Revenue

Funds

Food

Service

Transportation

Improvement

Trust

student

Activity
Funds

90,837

School

Capital

Proiects

Permanent

Fund
Other

Trusts Total

$ $ $$$ $ $

5.880

60,000

66,676

2,501,191

624,720

71.411

$

72,839

581,579

348,212

66,676

2,327

69.00372.839 929,791

2,339

2,339 90.837 5.880 3323,998

76,9s7 98,1 6 I

20,717

12,609

35 1,561

t,097,337

71,139

I,553

175,1 l8
949,153

20,717

68.253

949,153

76.957 949,153 98,r61 20,717 2,747,440

(4.1 l 8) (19,362) 69,003 2,339 .324). (20,717) 5,880 5',76,558

104.937)

73,760

I 04.937)

104.937) (31,r77)

(4,r18)

40.718

(r9,362)
454,940

(35,934)

121,279

2,339

76.670

(7,324)

98,635

(20,717)

20,717

5,880

192,821

545,381

712.893

$ 36,600 $ 435,578 $ 85,345 $ 79,009 $ 91,31 I $
-$--1e8J9.1- -$ 2258,2'74-

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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SCHEDALE 6

CITY OF SOMERS'TORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Student Activity Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30,2023

Idlehurst

Elementary

Maple Wood

Elementary

Middle

School School

Career

Technical

Center

High
Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

FUND BALANCES
Assigned

$ 7,077 $ 9,957 $ 11,713 $ 59,191 $ 3,373 $ 91'311

$ 7.077 $ 9,957 $ 11,713 $ 59,191 $ 3,373 $ 91,31 I

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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SCHEDALE 7

CITY OF SOMERSWORTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Student Activity Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Fiscal Year Ended lune 30' 2023

Idlehurst

Elementary

Maple Wood

Elementary

Middle

School School

Career

Technical

Center

3,286

(137)

3,510

$ 3,373

Total

98,161

(7,324)

98,635

$ 91,311

High

REVENUES

Charges for services

EXPENDITURES

Education

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

9,033 10,623

(458)

7,53s

$ 7,077 $ 9,957

$ 8,575 $ 9,58e $ 33,729 $ 35,795 $ 3,149 $ 90,837

(1,034)

10,991

38,014

(4,285)

15,998

$ I1,713

37,205

(1,410)

60,601

$ 59,191
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS AND
SINGLE AUDIT ACT SCHEDULES



Pnonzx& SaxuERsoN
Pr ofessional Ass oc iat ion/Cert ifi ed Public Accountants

t93 North Main street

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AADITING STANDARDS

lndeoendent Auditor's Report

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager
City of Somerswofth
Somerswofth, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards

applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United

Stites (Government AuditingStandards),the financial statements of the govemmental activities, business-type activities, each

major governmental and proprietary fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Somersworth as of and

foithJyear ended June 30,2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of
Somersworth's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 1,2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Somersworth's internal control over

finincial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the

purpose of expreising our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

iffectiveness of the City of Somersworth's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City of Somersworth's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the

normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility

that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely

basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a

material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not

designed to identiff all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these

limitations, during our audit we did not identiff any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Somersworth's financial statements are free from material

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,

noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on

compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government

Auditing Standards.
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City of Somersworth
nipoit on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit

i7 Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Stundards

Purpose of This Report

The purpose ofthis report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that

testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This ls an

integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing s internal

control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
,f:K##/rry

April1,2024
Concord, New Hampshire

PLODZIK & SANDERSON
Professional Association
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Pronzm& SexonRsoN
Professional Association/Accountants & Auditors

tq3 North Main street

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MATOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GAIDANCE

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and City Manager

City of Somersworth
Somerswofih, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Mujor Federal Program

We have audited the City of Somersworth's compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit

in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Somersworth's major federal

programs for the year ended June 30,2023. The City of Somersworth's major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the City of Somersworth complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements refeffed to above

that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023 '

Basisfor Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America

(GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goyernment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller

General of the United Siates (Government Auditing Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S, Code of Federal

Regulations Pqrt 200, Unifurm Administrqtive Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

lUniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's

Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the City of Somerswofth and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with

relevant ethical requir.-"nts relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal

determination of the City of Somersworth's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Respo nsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, and

maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and

provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the City of Somersworth's federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance requirements

referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the City of Somersworth's compliance based

on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that

an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect

material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for
that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the

report on compliance about the City of Somersworth's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a

whole.
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City of Somersworth
Report on Compliancefor Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Required by the Uniform Guidance

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS , Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

r Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or elror, and design and perform audit

procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the City of
Somersworth's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures

as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

o Obtain an understanding of the City of Somersworth's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over

compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the City of Somersworth's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed'

We are required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we

identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A de/iciency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,

noncompliance with a ilrpe of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. I material weakness in internal

control iver compliart"ls a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a

reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be

prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal piog.a. that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit

attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for

the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identifi all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that

might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our

audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as

defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were

not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.

Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
testing of internal control

report is

not suitable for any other purpose

April1,2024
Concord, New Hampshire

PLODZIK & SANDERSON
Professional Association
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SCHEDULE I
City of Somersworth

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended lune 30' 2023

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Finuncial Ststements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

Unmodified opinions on governmental activities. business-type activities. each major governmental and ProPrietar-v fund'

and aggregate remaining fund information

Internal control over financial reporting:

o Material weakness(es) identified?

r Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federsl Awsrds

Internal control over major programs:

r Material weakness(es) identified?

. Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's repoft issued on compliance for major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200,5 l6(a)?

Identification of major federal programs:

yes

yes

yes

Xno

X none reported

Xno

yes

yes X none rePofted

Unmodified

yes 
-X- 

no

noX

Assistance Number Name of Federal Prosram or Cluster

84.425U COVID-19 - Education Stabilization Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and

type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

000

X yes

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

NONE

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS

NONE

no
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SCHEDALE II
City of Somersworth

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through

Grantor/Proqram or Cluster Title

Assistance
Listing
Number

Pass-Through
Entity

Identif,ing
Number

Provided to Federal

Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Passed Through the State of New Hampshire

Department of Education

CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER

School Breakfast Program

National School Lunch Program

COVID-I9 - National School Lunch Program

Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program
CLUSTERTOTAL

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF'HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Passed Through the New Hampshire

Communitv Develooment Finance

Community Development Block Grants/State's Program

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Passed Through the State of New Hampshire

Department ofNatrual and Cultural Resources

Historic Preservation Fund Grants-ln-Aid

Outdoor Recreation Acquisition, Development, and Planning

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Passed Through the State of New Hampshire

DeDartment of TransDortation

Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction

PROGRAM TOTAL

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Passed Through the State of New Hampshire

Department ofTransoortation

State and Community Highway Safety

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY

Passed Through the State of New Hampshire

Govemor's Office for Emersencv Reliefand

COVID-l9 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Passed Through the State of New Hampshire

Department of Justice

COVID-I9 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Passed Through the State of New Hampshire

Department of Environmental Services

COVID-I9 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

COVID-19 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

PROGRAM TOTAL

TJ.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Passed Through the State of New Hampshire

Department o f Education

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies:

Title I Part A
Title I Part A

PROGMMTOTAL

10.553

10.555
10.555

10.582

$ 103,668

372,069
47,052
47.2s8

t4.228 20-218-CDHS

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

cLG-P21AS0023 l-07

33-00724

41363
4t741

227.536 227,536

$

570,047

r 5.904

15.916

20.20s
20.205

21.027
2r.027

2,t58

1,088

687 ,7ls
8,126

695,841

53520.600 23-07-04

21.027 00FRF602PH0206A

21 02'1 00FRF602GS2002A

7,942

2,936

00FRF602WB440lD
cw-334163-01

20220292

20230317

8,244

22.888

42,010

84.010

84.010

90,674

584,684

675,358

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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SCHEDULE II (Continued)
City of Somersworth

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30' 2023

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through

Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

Assistance
Listing
Number

Pass-Through

Entity
Identif,ing

Number
Provided to Federal

Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Passed Through the State ofNew Hampshire

Department of Educationre
Special Education Grants to States:

IDEA
IDEA
IDEA
COVID-I9-ARP-IDEA

Special Education Preschool Grants:

Preschool
CLUSTERTOTAL

Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States:

Perkins V Program Improvement
Perkins V Program Improvement
Perkins V Program Improvement

PROGMMTOTAL

English Language Acquisition State Grants:

Title III
Title III
Title III

PROGMMTOTAL

Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants:

Title II Part A
Title II Part A
Title II Part A
Title II Part A

PROGRAMTOTAL

Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program:

TitIE IV A
PROGRAMTOTAL

COVID-I9 - Education Stabilization Fund:

ESSER III
PROGMMTOTAL

DIRECT FI.II\DING
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Farm to School Grant Program

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Alcohol, Tobacco, & Firearms

Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program

Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants

Equitable Sharing Program

20200196
20211105
20220592
20230355

84.424 20211751

84.425U 20220469

10.575

16.u01

16.607

16.7 t0

16922

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule'
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84.367

84.367

84.367
84.367

1,5 89

7,219

36,800
6r,429

84.027

84.027

84.027
84.027X

20211438
2022033r
20230300
20220539

20220085

20230236
20230908

20211258
20220729
20230486

964
tt,l92

421,697
26,263

3,702

463.8 I 8

84.t73 2021t438

84.048

84.048
84.048

515

57,590

50,000
108,105

84.365
84.365

84.365

2,585

r3,288
995

r6,868

t07,037

48,914
48.914

2,145,188
1 145.1 88

57,940

1,933

8,525

54.429

21,060
(Continued)



SCHEDaLE II (Continued)
City of Somersworth

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

Assistance

Listing
Number

Pass-Through

Entity
Identiffing

Number

Provided to Federal

Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY

COVID-l9 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Assistance to Firefighters Grant

Homeland Security Grant Program

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

21.027

97.044

97.067

EMW-2021-FG-06875

23HS2OSHTR

353"482

50,299

1,939

s 227.s36 _$l,ol4.u-q-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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CITY OF SOMERSWORTH

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITARES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JANE 30,2023

Note I. Basis of Presentution

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "schedule") includes the federal award activity of the City of

Somersworth under programs of the federal government for the year ended Jurr'e 30, 2023. The information in this Schedule is

presented in accordancJ with the requirements of Title 2 rJ.S. Code of Federal Regu,lations Part 200, Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost principles, and Au-dit Requirements for Federal Awards (lJniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only

a selected portion of the'operations of the -ity of Somersworlh, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,

changes in net assets, or cash flows of the City of Somersworth.

Note 2. Summary of SignifrcantAccounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized

foliowing the cbst principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are

limited as to reimbursement.

Note 3.Indirect Cost Rate

The City of Somersworth has elected not to use the l0-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance'

Note 4. Food Donstion

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair market value of the commodities on the date received. For the fiscal

year ended June 30, 2023,the value offood donations received was $63,168.
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